e T=EN,

M | : |
i i TRl e
g [=_ = =

NGTON’S
entennial Farms

YESTERDAY AND T ODA




WASHINGTON’S
Centennza[ ‘Farms

YESTERDAY D T ODAY

Published by
Washington State Department of Agriculture
as part of Washington State’s

Centennial Celebration

Washington State Department of Agriculture
406 General Administration Building
Olympia, Washington 98504-064 1
October 1989



B et st il Walves Mol

ashingeon s Centennial Tarms were settled and developed by families who
Wb r -,.r.-'-'.. - ] i f -4 . I L i J At o ' ]
canee to MWashington Terrttory primarily from the Midwiest, California and Oregon.




Contents

Letter from C. AlAn PettiDOME ......couiviiiiiiiniiiiiiicincinnne it sstissine e se st ressassansesassssas ssssessssssesssnsberasssssanessas sast sesserasns Page iii
Recognizing Agriculture’s COMIIDULION .o i iiiiiriecrticsinissitinitiiiisnisnesesssaesessasssesesssssanessssessssssesssssassesanssossasssosssesssnsesessassssssesensanssass 1
Washington’s Centennial FArms: A Profile ... iereiriinniiiieiiiiniiieninennceenesseeressnssessnscssesssosesessnesassassssssssssssssssssssasssssasasasssssans 5
Acquiring Farm Land in Washington TerTiOrY ... iiiinniniiciiisininiensssisssisstissnsisssssissessssssiesesssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssnsese 13
Agriculture Yesterday and TOOAY ....iiiiiiiinieniiriiinnieiiseietiatesssnanscsestisssntsssisesssssstssssastessasssssstassissesssoresesssssssssassssaseessas 23

Washington’s Centennial Farms

Southwest Washington and SOULD PUZEL SOUNM weeivceecuieeiniincssiseseiesorssnsisesossesiesonsarascssssessassosssssmssssssosssersessssssssses st sstssssesssssss et assassnsassessasenessesasasesseass 27
Clark, Wahkiakum, Cowlitz, Pacific, Lewis, Grays Harbor, Thursion, Pierce,
King, Kitsap, Mason, Jefferson, Clallam Counties

NOTEH PUZEE SOUNM c.vveveveverreereeverenresrsrsersasssssssssssssessessrsssssarasssserssrssssrassssonsessesssonsseasvessss sesensesusasenssessassnststasssss teassnessesentoteaasnsesssssesssaseteseasssasastessessanssanmseronsnsssensss 53
Island, San Juan, Snohomish, Skagit, Whatcom Counties
WALLA WALLA COUNLY cueerereerrreeeerarerrerererssessessresessssesssssasassssssssesasessssesssssssseseasesssssesssssssssnsasseresasasssstostsssssssses ssssss sosssntasassssssnsassssesssosessassetsesesasssssetosesssnsasseressnnnases 75
SOULNEASE WASHIIZEON 1.evvueereeeeeetreiieseisissiststsesessessasssassrsessereassesrarestsssssssssosesssttssssinssssessssasasessesssesas iessessssasssmntsaassthessmasarsesssessmesssasasmmtesasss nsasessenemssararssssastaseess 105
Columbia, Garfield, Asotin Counties
WHItIMAN COUNLY wcevvrrrireeernrisiesesasssssasressnsssssesssssssessesssssssssssssssssssssssasssnsss reeesrerr st asteses et s n s ass e enasseasrerarans eeeteeerettte et a e r et a st e Rt et betnseaan 129
NOFEhEASE WASHINELON ... .oooeveeersersiaresiassassssessesscssssesssessssssssssssrasssssassssssssesssessssssssasasonssssssessassorsssssssssssonmens rererererreaerva st eeetressrasaebessrarase 175
Stevens, Spokane Counties
CNEFAL WASHIIZEON .cvvvevrerererrercrsessiosesiesssiesesssseressesessssessssssssessessesessssesssassesassssessssssseseressssesssssssssessssesessssssassssrssssassssesnssssssassssesssssssosassssssasastessesesassresessenssssers 199
Yakima, Kittitas, Benton, Klickitat, Chelan, Okanogan Counties
EASt CONETAl WASRINZLON «.ccvrveeeerererirnererereressesstsesssasssesssssssetesssessssessessassssssssssssasasnsassssessssaresssssssesorsssssasesosssassssesesssarsasssesesssvaresesssasssessasesesssossssnsnsasssssssssssarerers 225
Lincoln, Adams, Franklin, Grant, Douglas Counties
How to Obtain Land Office ReCOTdS ......cccvinecruiisenssnmsnsinncccsnisinnsessesnnesssssssassseesnes TS 257
List of Centennial Farms DY COUNLY ...cuiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiinimimiisissisiesiostsstissemestiostsossiessstesssssostsssssssasssssssssassssessossssssesssssssss s 260

Index of Farm and FAmily NAMIES .....ccuiicneieioneinniiinnnienececssssimssnssssossassssssssssressssssssssssssssssssssssssessasssssnnsssssasssssasssssssssssassssassesssnssesssnnse 268



pstgl agleiehiblie Colemilks Boa

q;:- diviersity of

Whshimgton agriculture
continues to be one af its S:.r‘n.‘r.'t.'ir.l!'r:f.

wilump Ei ngs Ausn Fapn




Lm pleased to join our Centennial Farm families as they
celebrate their heritage and their families’ role in the settlement and
development of Washington State.

Agriculture has always been a part of my life. My family arrived at
Dixie, near Walla Walla, in 1869 when my grandfather was just three
years old. My family later farmed in the Kahlotus area and has
called the Whitman County farm home for over 50 years.

I'm impressed with how vastly different things are today from when |
was growing up and working on our farm in the 1930’s and 40’s.
Farming was truly diversified back then. We were self-sufficient,
producing nearly everything we needed—milk, eggs, meat, produce—
in addition to the grain crops that provided the farm income.

Just in my own lifetime there have been tremendous changes in
agriculture brought on by new technology, improved varieties,
agricultural chemicals, better production practices and the expansion
of markets throughout the world.

Change will continue, at an even faster rate than before. With our
diverse agricultural base and the natural advantages we enjoy, [
believe Washington State agriculture will be able to meet the
demands of those changes, whatever they may be. Agriculture has
been, and will continue to be, a vital part of Washington’s economy
and its character,

The celebration of our state’s Centennial is an appropriate time to
reflect on the past and to look to the future. Each of the Centennial
Farm profiles in this book is a story of a pioneer and of a family that
has been part of Washington agriculture and Washington
communities for over 100 years. Together these stories illustrate the
importance of agriculture to this state yesterday and today. The
profiles provide the background and a current description of farms

that are part of an industry that I see readying itself for the
challenges and opportunities that the future will bring.

I'm pleased that so many families have shared a part of their history
and that, through this publication, we are able to present these
stories to others as examples of agriculture’s role in the history and
development of Washington State.

Sincerely,

C @A‘.@Ax

C. Alan Pettibone
Director, Washington State
Department of Agriculture
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Recognizing Agriculture s Contribution

n the spring of 1986 representatives of state agencies met with
Centennial co-chairmen Jean Gardner and Ralph Munro to discuss
plans for celebrating the state’s Centennial. In keeping with the
Centennial Commission’s goal of a truly statewide celebration empha-
sizing the heritage of the past, the energy ot today, and the promise of
the future, state agencies were encouraged to develop ways to really
recognize the people and organizations that had contributed to Wash-
ington State’s tirst 100 years.

About the same time, a statewide agricultural organization, the Wash-
ington State Grange, suggested that the Department of Agriculture
sponsor a Centennial project to recognize farins that had been in the
same family for 100 years or more.

The idea was discussed with the Washington Cattlemen’s Association
and the Washington State Farm Bureau, both of which had ongoing
statewide century farm programs. There was also a very active group
of volunteers in Garfield County who had begun acounty Century Farm
program who were most helpful in sharing information as the Centen-
nial Farm Recognition Program took shape.

We thought it would be a simple straightforward project. The project
would highlight the importance of agriculture to the settlement and
development of Washington State. It would be a one-time effort,
recognizing as many farms as possible that had been in continuous
ownership of the same family for 100 years or more at the time of the
state’s Centennial.

The fact that a total of less than 80 farms had been recognized by the
Cattlemen’s Association’s and the Farm Bureau’s programs led us to
estimate that 150-200 farms might participate in a Centennial Farm
project. Our estimate proved to be very conservative. Response was
overwhelming.

We received almost 700 requests for applications and almost 400
completed applications by the December 31, 1988 deadline.

Reviewing and clarifying the information provided by families was a very time-
consuming task. We found out early how much there was to know about how
land was acquired by Washington settlers and that many farm owners had little
in the way of specific information about their ancestors..

Often there was a document or family history that indicated yes, this was a
Centennial Farm. But trying to determine just when an ancestor came to
Washington and when he staked his claim to a particular piece of land was not
always a simple matier,

One decision made early on was te recognize the date the Centennial Farm
founder settled onrthe land as the date of first ownership. For many reasons, the
date legal title to land was actually transferred to a settler was as many as twenty
years after he or she started living on and farming the land.

Each farim profile outlines how ownership of the farm has passed from genera-
tion to generation. In some cases families chose to list all who have owned the
land, even for a short time or involving a small interest. Others chose to list only
the principal owners over time.

The ownership information is as of the start of 1989 and does not show changes
that have occurred during the year.

We used the responses to the 21 questions on the application and any additional
information the family submitted to write a brief narrative about each farm. Each
Centennial Farm family reviewed the profile we prepared and made any
necessary changes.

The information presented in this book reflects the information and documenta-
tion provided us by each of the Centennial Farm families. It also reflects a great
deal of acquired knowledge and understanding on our part. Each application was
reviewed a minimum of six times. When information did not ring true we asked
questions, provided families with information about the early land laws, and
often did research on our own using resources we discovered through books, the
Bureau of Land Managment and others. Even still, some uncertainties and
conflicting dates and information remain.

Director of Agriculture C. Alan Pettibone announced the Centennial Farms on

1
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Ongoing Century Farm
Recognition Programs

The Centennial Farm Recognition Program was a one-time
effort conducted by the Washington State Department of
Agriculture as a part of the state’s Centennial celebration.

There are a number of ongoing programs in the state that
recognize farms that reach the 100-year-old mark of family
ownership.

Two statewide programs exist. The Washington State
Farm Bureau’s program is open to any qualifying farm.
The Washington Cattlemen’s Association program is open
only to its members. Criteria for each program differ
slightly. You can contact the state offices of these organi-
zations for more information.

A number of groups have had or have started local Century
Farm programs. Here is a list of the sponsoring organiza-
tions for those that have contacted the department about
their programs.

Asotin County Historical Society, Asotin
Garfield County Museum, Pomeroy

Central Washington Agricultural Museum, Union Gap
recognizes farms in Yakima, Benton, Kittitas and
Klickitat counties

Whitman County Pioneer Association

National Agriculture Day, March 20, 1989. The project is completed with the
publication of this book which is intended to be a resource for those interested
in Washington State history.

The project has involved people throughout the state. Certainly it has involved
the families of the 391 farms profiled in this book. They are many, though
certainly not all, of the century-old farms in the state. We thank them for
choosing to participate.

Many county and local organizations worked hard to encourage people torequest
and complete applications and organized events to honor their Centennial Farms.
The project wouldn’t have been complete without their enthusiasm and assis-
tance.

This project also would not have been realized without the excellent work of our
project assistant Julie Chess.

The Centennial Farm Recognition program has been a rewarding experience for
us, particularly the personal interaction we’ve had with the members of Centen-
nial Farm families. It’s a pleasure to know this project provided the stimulus for
many to research their family history and helped others uncover new information
and learn more about Washington State history.

The Centennial Farm Recognition program spotlights Washington agriculture.
We want to thank each of the hundreds of individuals who have played a part in
making the Centennial Farm program meaningful and successful.

Mary Beth Lang Vicki Flynn
Researcher, Editor Centennial Project Coordinator
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@ State of Washington
. CENTENNIAL FarRM
- 100 Years of Continuous Agricultural Heritage -

In celebration of the Washington State Centennial, the Washington State Department of Agriculture
takes great pleasurc in presenting this certificate to:

Marvin and Colleen Carstens

Each Centennial Farm received a recognition certificate in
a folder with artwork created by Billie-Gwen Russell.

as the owner/owners of a farin which has remained
in the family for one hundred years or more,
lending 1o the rich heritage of this great state.

Recognized on Agriculture Day, March 20, 1989
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Wa‘gﬁmﬂ ton'’s Centennial Tarms
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hey have their rools in Washinglon State, perhaps deeper than any others,
Families who came to the new territory and began to farm the land.

They were some of Washington’s earliest settlers. They came for the promise
of land and new opportunities. They farmed first to supply food for their families
and local markets. Soon they were shipping food and agricultural products to
markets thousands of miles away.

Almost 400 farms, located throughout Washington State, have been designated
as Washington Centennial Farms. These are farms that have been owned by the
same family for 100 years or more, and that have chosen to share some of their
family history with others.

The oldest Centennial Farms are in Island and Lewis counties. They trace their
roots back to 1851, to the time when Washington was still part of the Oregon
Territory.

The dates of settlement of Centennial Farms reflect the settlement and population
growth of the state during its territorial years. Nine Centennial Farms were
established before 1860. A steadily increasing number of farms were settled in
the 1860’s and 1870’s, with more than half of the farms established in the last
decade before statehood.

The settlement of the state and the establishment of Centennial Farms began in
western Washington. Settlementbegan near Vancouver and on Puget Sound and
moved up river valleys and inland from the coast.

Western Washington has the oldest Centennial Farms, as well as some of the
youngest. Eighty-six Centennial Farms are spread out over the 18 western
counties with the greatest number in Snohomish and Skagit counties.

Washington’s earliest agricultural lands in western Washington became the sites
of Washington cities and, over time, farming has given way to residential and
industrial development. Some of the oldest Centennial Farms are now side by
side with urban areas. The oldest Centennial Farm, the Freund Farm in Island
County, is in the city limits of Oak Harbor and a grocery store now sits on land
that was once part of the farm. In the Puyallup Valley, land still owned by
descendents of Ronimous Nix is a private golf course with the Nix brothers

I"armin;: 120 5.
acres right ik i
next door. T e
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development
has not been as
great east of the
Cascades.
Eastern Washing-
ton development
has kept close to
the already estab-
lished cities and
communities. Popu-
lation growth has
been on a much
smaller scale and has
not affected farmland
in the same way.
The oldest Centennial Farms in eastern Washington were settled in 1858, the
year eastern Washington was re-opened to settlement after the Indian Wars.
Centennial Farm founders came first to the fertile Walla Walla River Valley.
Here, too, settlement followed rivers and streams.

You'll find Centennial Farms in 36 of Washington’s 39 counties. Only Ferry,
Pend Oreille and Skamania counties do not have Centennial Farms. Whitman
County has the greatest number of Centennial Farms, with 78, or 20 percent, of
Washington’s Centennial Farms. An additional three counties have more than
30 Centennial Farms: Walla Walla has 47, Spokane has 38 and Lincoln has 32.

Columbia County has the greatest percentage of Centennial Farms. Twenty
Columbia County farms, almost 10 percent of the farms in the county, are
Centennial Farms. In Walla Walla, Garfield and Whitman counties, more than
five percent of the farms in the county are Centennial Farms.

N



What is a Centennial Farm?

In considering what would qualify as a Centennial Farm,
the decision was made to be as inclusive as possible. There
were no minimum acreage requirements.

To qualify as a Centennial Farm, a farm had to meet a
number of criteria,

» The land must have been continuously owned within the
same family for 100 or more years. To qualify for Centen-
nial Farm Recognition, a farm must have been settled on or
purchased by an ancestor prior to 1890.

» The land must have been in agricultural production or
under first improvement in 1889.

» The present owner must be related to a person who origi-
nally owned the land. The line of ownership from the
original settler or buyer may be through children, brothers,
sisters, nephews, and/or nieces. Adopted children are
recognized equally with blood children,

» The present owner or a member of the owner’s family
must actively manage the farm.

+ The present farm must meet the current USDA definition
of a farm: A farm includes all land under one management
arrangement which has at least $1,000 worth of agricul-
tural production or sales or expenses for production of
agricultural products during the most recent calendar year.

All farms that met the program criteria and submitted an
application by January 1, 1989 received a certificate from
the Washington State Department of Agriculture and are
profiled in this book.

R <l e

Most of Washington’s Centennial Farms were
settled by people who came from eastern and
midwestern states and most of these people were
born in the United States. Many had come west
tirst to Oregon or California and later headed north
to take advantage of the land and opportunities
available in the new territory.

A significant number of Centennial Farms were also settled by people from
northern European countries. Most of these immigrant settlers came from
Scandinavia, the British Isles and Germany.

These pioneers were often young men or young married couples in their 20°s, It
was not unusual for entire families to come west, sometimes all at once or over

to power its threshing machine in 1910.



In western Washington, many settlers had to clear heavy timber before farming their homesteads.

the course ot a few years. Men in their 40’s and 50’s came to Washington with
their families which often included adult children who were already married and
starting families of their own.

For the earliest settlers it was a long, difficult journey to the northwest. Many
came by covered wagon over the Oregon Trail. Wagon trains would leave
Missouri each spring after grass for livestock began its new season growth. It
was a 2000-mile journey across the plains and the mountains that would take four
to five months.

Some early settlers also came by ship, travelling from the east coast to the
Isthmus at Panama and taking a second ship up to San Francisco or Portland or
Seattle before going overland or up river. For settlers from Europe, these
journeys were preceded by a long trip across the ocean.

When at last the railroads were built, travel became easier and much faster. More
people came west and more farms were settled. The first transcontinental
railroad, the Union Pacific, was completed to California in 1869 and Washing-
ton settlers could then take the train to San Francisco and then sail up the coast
to Astoria or Portland. But the big boon to settlement came when the Northern

Pacific Railroad was completed in 1883 and settlers could
travel by train directly to Washington Territory.

Starting in southwestern Washington and South Puget
Sound, settlement of Washington land moved north and
east. Washington’s Centennial Farm founders typically
filed claims on public land and gained title to that land after
improving it and putting it under cultivation.

Improving land took different forms in different parts of
the state. A Skagit County settler would dike and drain
land, while a Kittitas County farmer constructed irrigation
ditches. Western Washington settlers first had to cut
Lagesson Farm. 1910 timber and clear stumps from the land. Eastern Washing-
ton settlers broke out sod and often travelled quite a
distance to find timber to build a home, a barn and fences.

Horsepower was used to enlarge the Sunnyside Irrigation Canal in 1910.



It was a rough existence for most settlers. Many were the
first to settle in an area. Their first residences were
shacks, one-room log cabins, tents or houses built out of
sod. But they soon would build better, larger homes,
using sawn timber rather than logs. The houses would
have windows and separate living and sleeping quarters.
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Settlers replaced their early shacks and cabins with
larger, more comfortable homes. A new barn dwarfs a
homestead cabin on the Ayers Ranch in the 1920’ s.

In the early years, Washington farms were diversified and
self-sufficient. They produced food for the family, feed for
the livestock, and agricultural products to sell for income
to buy family and farm supplies.

Most of the people who came to Washington came here for
the land. Most were farmers but Centennial Farm founders
also included teachers, carpenters, blacksmiths, freighters,
amiller, anewspaper editor. The skills and talents of these
people were important in improving the land and establish-
ing and developing communities. Their skills also could
provide additional income for their family.

Most of Washington’s Centennial Farms started with the
acquisition of a 160-acre parcel of land. Neighboring land
was often acquired. By 1890, these farms were part of an
industry with more than 18,000 farms producing $13.7
million in agricultural products, an average of $750 per
farm.



Mietke Farm, 1989

Most eastern Washington Centennial Farms grow wheat
and other grain crops.

MostCentennial Farms were passed on to sons or nephews
and continue to be owned and operated by individuals who
have the same last name of the original settler. On most
farms you’ll find a descendent of the first family owner
managing the day-to-day operation of the farm.

Each of these Centennial Farms has been a part of agricul-
ture as it's gone through profound changes over the past
100 years. These changes have been brought on by
mechanization, electricity, improved varieties, better pro-
duction practices and the expansion of markets throughout
the world.

Today, Washington’s Centennial Farms are more special-
ized than they were 100 years ago. The farms range in size
from a one-acre orchard to wheat ranches of over 5000
acres. They are part of an industry of 38,000 farms that
produced more than $3.6 billion dollars of agricultural
commodities in 1988, anaverage of more than $94,000 per
farm.

These Centennial Farms were settled and developed by
families whose histories are an integral part of the history
of Washington. Many of these families helped establish
communities, churches and schools and played an active
role in shaping Washington as it is today.

The local schools would often carry their name. There was Scoggin School in
Garfield County, McRae School in Skagit, Muehle School in Spokane. Farm
families would often deed an acre or two to the local school district so that their
children and their neighbors’ children could get an education.

Reading a county map, particularly of eastern Washington, is like reading a list
of Centennial Farms. Roads, and in some cases, localities and natural features
were named after early settlers. The Bull Farm is on Bull Road, the Zwainz Farm

Many farm families helped establish local schools. John A. Bishop donated the land and helped
build Bishop School, District No. 96.

9



Olmstead Place State Park_

EXPERIENCE A PIONEER HOMESTEAD

In 1875, Samuel and Sarah Olmstead crossed the
Cascade Mountains on horseback with their young
family. Like many early residents, the Olmsteads
were allracted to the Kittitas Valley by the tall
grass that provided feed for their livestock, the
rich soil and suitable climate for farming, and the
plentiful supply of water for crops and animals.
Their farm was one of the first homesteads in the
valley.

The Olmstead’s cabin, though simple and rugged
by today’s standards, was considered large and
comfortable in 1875. It was constructed of cot-
tonwood logs from the Yakima River Canyon.
With newspapers lining the walls for insulation
and heat provided by a fireplace and a cookstove, ’ : : fa 0 T E i
the cabin was secure from the cold. The Olmstead’ s homestead cabin, built in 1876, has
heen restored and furnished with period articles.

By 1900 the farm boasted a dairy barn, wagon
shed, granary and toolhouse. In 1908 a barn was
constructed for hay storage and a new residence was built. A milkhouse was added in 1920.

In 1968, Leta May Smith and Clareta Olmstead Smith, granddaughters of Sarah and Samuel Olmstead, deeded
the 217-acre farm to the Washington State Parks and Recreation Commission. Leta May and Clareta had no
descendents, and their legacy was to be a living historical farm which would preserve and interpret an important
part of our heritage. Their generous donation included not only the rich farm land, but pioneer artifacls,
antiquated farm implements, and all of the farm's historical buildings.

The Seaton Cabin schooihouse, built in the 1870’s, was reconstructed at Olmstead Place in 1980.

Olmstead Place remains today much as it was when Sarah and Samuel lived there, and now, as Olmstead Place
State Park, it is being developed into a living historical farm.

Olmstead Place State Park, located 4 1/2 miles southeast of Ellensburg, provides an opportunity for the public
to experience a pioneer homestead. The 1876 cabin has been restored and furnished with articles of the period
between 1875-1890 when it was occupied by the Olmstead family. Guided tours through the restored cabin and
the 1908 farmhouse are offered on summer weckends or by appointment. Park staff may be contacted lor further
information.




is on Zwainz Road. Waitts Lake is next to Waitt’s farm, the Macaulay Farm is
on Macaulay Creek. The Lowden Farm’s mailing address is Lowden, Washing-
ton.

Members of Washington Centennial Farms have had a major role in shaping how
Washington developed as a state. At least eight Centennial Farm founders were
members of the territorial and early state legislatures. George Comegys was
Speaker of the 1880 territorial legislature, only two years after coming to
Washington. Of the 75 delegates to the state’s constitutional convention four —
Comegys, Thomas Hayton, Henry Suksdorf and Lewis Neace — were founders
of Centennial Farms. Members of later generations of Centennial Farm families,
including Walter Rowe, John Hansen, and Elmer Huntley, also served as elected
state officials and helped set the direction and write the laws that this state has
grown under.

The rock from which Littlerock got its name is in front of the Rutledge home
and was used as a mounting stone for ladies who rode side saddle.

Alex McLean

Centennial Farm owners have played an active role in local and state
government. George Comegys is one of many Centennial Farm founders
elected to territorial or state office. Alex McLean is a Centennial Farm owner
in the 1989 state legislature.

Today, three state legislators, Alex McLean of Mansfield, Gene Prince of
Thornton and Bill Grant of Walla Walla, are members of Centennial Farm
families.

Many members of Centennial Farm families have helped shape Washington at
the state level and even more were instrumental at the county and local level.
These were people who held elected and appointed positions. Many served as
county commissioner, school director, assessor, sheriff, surveyor, and in other
local and county positions. Many were the first postmaster for their area.

Unmentioned are the many ways Centennial Farm families contributed to their
communities without official titles or positions.

Washington’s Centennial Farms made up two percent of the state’s farms in 1890
and make up just over one percent of the state’s farms today. They each provide
us with an unbroken thread that follows the settlement and development of
agriculture. Together these many threads weave a picture of agriculture then and
agriculture now. Individually and as a group, these Centennial Farms help tell
the story of Washington agriculture and the story of Washington state.
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st of Washington's early farms acquired land under the Homestead Act. After five
years of residence and improvement, a homesteader would make final proof and receive a patent
giving him title to the (and. Thomas Rutledge was the 116th person to apply for a homestead
and the 139th to make final proof at Washington s first land office in Olympia.




Acquiring Farm Land in
Washington Territory

he profiles of these Centennial Farms provide an overview of how land
was settled in territorial Washington over the course of almost 40 years,

While many farms were acquired through sales between private parties,
Washington's first farms and most of Washington’s Centennial Farms acquired
land from the U.S. government through provisions of a number of public land
disposal acts.

THE DONATION LAND ACT OF 1850

Washington’s oldest Centennial Farms were settled under the Donation Land
Act, the only way to officially acquire land in the earliest years.

The Donation Land Act of 1850 was specific to the Oregon Territory, which at
the time included present day Washington. It rewarded the territory’s earliest
settlers with land. White males, including half-breed Indians, who had settled
inthe territory by December 1, 1850 could claim up to 640 acres. The law granted
320 acres to single men or 640 acres to married men who were over the age of
18.

The law also encouraged new settlers by offering at no cost up to 320 acres of land
to white males who settled in the territory by December 1, 1855. The law granted
160 acres to single men or 320 acres to married men who were over the age of
21. This was only the second time Congress had passed a law offering free land
to encourage new settlement.

Settlers were required to live on the land and cultivate it for four consecutive
years. Donation land claims were limited to settlers who were citizens or
declared their intent to become citizens.

The Donation Land Act continued to apply to Washington land after Washington
Territory was created from Oregon Territory in 1853.

The Donation Land Act was short-lived but very quickly allowed the earliest
settlers in the territory to make a claim and eventually acquire title to 300,000
acres of the most accessible land in Washington. One major complaint about the
act was that the maximum size of a grant, 640 acres, was so large that it isolated
settlers from each other and discouraged the development of communities.

Land grants in Washington were made to 1,018 individuals under the Donation
Land Act. Almost half of those grants were made in three counties— Thurston
with 234, Clark with 161 and Pierce with 108. Only 13 donation land grants were
made in eastern Washington, primarily in the Walla Walla and Colville areas
near former Hudson’s Bay Company trading posts.

THE PRE-EMPTION ACT OF 1841

Washington settlers gained another way to acquire public land in 1854 when the
Pre-Emption Act of 1841 was extended to include Washington Territory. Under
the pre-emption law, a settler could acquire 160 acres of land at the low cost of
$1.25 peracre. Any head of a family, widow, or single man over 21, who did not
already own 320 acres of land was granted a preferred, or pre-emptory, right to

Under the Pre-Emption Act, a person could purchase 160 acres for
the low price of $1.25 an acre. The price for land that fell within
forty miles of the railroad line was $2.50 an acre.
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buy 160 acres for $1.25 per acre. From 1870 to 1889, the price was
$2.50 per acre for land pre-empted within the railroad grant limits.

The pre-emption law required settlers to reside on the land and improve
it before they could purchase the land. While land was not free, $1.25
was a very low price and settlers had at least a year, and sometimes
many years, to pay for the land.

Ideally, the process for transferring land from federal ownership to
private ownership began with the federal government surveying the
land. Once surveyed, the land was then opened to settlement or
purchase.

Settlers, however, did not wait for the surveyors. They located on the
best land they could find and claimed “squatter’s rights.” Once their
land was surveyed they would then file their claim with the land office.

Very little of Washington had been surveyed by the time pre-emption
took effect in 1854. And the progress of survey work was very slow.
The heavy timber and rough terrain of western Washington made the
land difficult to survey. The Indian Wars kept surveyors out of the field
in eastern Washington until 1858. Numerous other administrative
problems, including inadequate funding and low payment rates for
surveyors, held up the progress of surveys.

To acquire land under the pre-emption law, a settler first filed a
declaratory statement (D.S.) identifying the land that he had made
settlement on and intended to use his pre-emption right on. Afterliving
onand improving the land for a certain period of time, he would provide
proof of residency and improvement and pay for the land.

The deadlines for filing a declaratory statement and making final proof
were changed a number of times and differed if a person settled on
surveyed or unsurveyed lands.

On unsurveyed land, settlers had to file their declaratory statement
within six, later three, months after the land was surveyed and then had
12 months to make final proof and payment.

On already surveyed land, settlers initially were required to file their
“D.S.” within three months of settlement and could prove up on their
claim by providing proof of their settlement and improvement and
paying the fixed price of $1.25 per acre any time before the land was
offered for sale.

If no one had filed a pre-emption claim on a parcel of land the
government could offer it for sale. However, very little public land in
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Acquiring land under the
pre-emption and
homestead laws required
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and improve the land. This
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home and other needed oz sy
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Washington was ever offered for sale at public auction—only 3 million acres in
1863. The 1863 auction only sold a few thousand acres. To pre-empt the unsold
land, a settler had a month after settlement to file a D.S. and a year more to prove

up.
Most Washington settlers pre-empted land that had been surveyed but never
offered for sale at public auction. The deadline for final proof on these lands was
eventually set at 30 months after a settler filed his declaratory statement with the
district land office.

The pre-emption law was in effect from 1854 to 1891 in Washington but
relatively few Centennial Farms actually purchased land under the law. Few
farms were being established in the 1850°s and, in 1863, free land again became
available to Washington settlers after Congress passed the Homestead Act.

Still, the pre-emption law was very important to the settlement and expansion of
Washington farms. Many settlers used the law to file their first claim to 160
acres. They filed adeclaratory statement establishing their right of firstentry and
then, before the “proving up” time ended and $200 or $400 was due, they
changed their entry to a claim under the other settlement laws that allowed them

o = i > v

production.

William King homestead (circa 1870)
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land was a very useful way to acquire an additional 160 acres
from the government.

THE HOMESTEAD ACT

On May 20, 1862, the U.S. Congress passed the Homestead
Act “to secure homesteads to actual settlers on the
public domain.” More Washington settlers acquired land under
this law than all the other public land laws together. More than
58,000 free homestead claims on 8.5 million acres were proved
up in Washington State, most of them after 1889,

The Homestead Act granted 160 acres tree to a settler if
he or she would live on and improve the land continuously
for five years. Heads of households and any single per-
sons over 2| years of age were eligible to file homestead
applications.

Settlers were allowed six months after filing their original ap-
plication before they were required to live on the land. This
gave them time to build a residence and move their family onto
the land.

Although homestead land was free, there were fees to be paid.
The original filing fee on 160 acres was $10 and there were other fees to pay at
the time of application and final proof. Final proof had to be made within seven
years after application.

plant crops. Breaking out the bunch grass-covered hills of eastern Washington
Homesteading was not always as easy as it appeared. Living continuously on to plant it to wheat, potatoes and oats was hard work.

land for five years was often a hardship. It was difficult to earn income to pay
for improvements and needed supplies.

There were many adjustments to the homestead law over time, many of them
important to Washington settlers. Originally, homesteaders could only file an
Bringing land under cultivation was often a slow process. Western Washington application for surveyed land and the five-year residency clock didn’t start until
homesteaders had to cut heavy timber then clear the stumps before they could that application was filed.
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This presented a problem in Washington where early survey progress was slow
and there were complaints that the way surveys were conducted, an entire 36-
square mile township at a time, did not serve settlers who were staking claims
further and further up rivers and other waterways and not on the large acreage of
land further away from the water that was deemed less desirable. It wasn’t until
1880 that homesteading was officially allowed on unsurveyed land and the
homestead right was tied to the date of settlement rather than the date of
application.

Another important adjustment was to eliminate the size restriction on home-
steads within 40 miles of the Northern Pacific Railroad’s main route. Originally,
homesteaders who settled on government land within the railroad land grant
were limited to 80-acre homesteads. In 1879, the law was changed, allowing
homesteads up to 160 acres in size on all public land in Washington.

In 1872 an amendment allowed Civil War veterans to count the time they served
in the army toward the five-year residency requirement.

Homesteaders could commute their claim and receive title to the land after six
months residency and improvement by paying $1.25 per acre but few Washing-
ton settlers chose that option. Less than five percent of Washington’s homestead
claims were commuted.

Settlers could acquire an additional 160 acres of public land under the Timber Culture Act.

The Homestead Act specifically retained the pre-emption law. This made it
possible for settlers to acquire both a pre-emption and a homestead, each for 160
acres, though not at the same time because each required residency. This was
important, particularly in eastern Washington, where 160 acres was judged to be
not enough land to make a living from.

By 1889, over 9000 homestead entries had been proved up in Washington,
including many by the settlers and family members of Washington’s Centennial
Farms.

THE TIMBER CULTURE ACT

The Timber Culture Act of 1873 was often used by homesteaders and preemptors
to acquire additional land from the government. The timber culture law granted
160acres to a settler who planted and maintained a minimum number of trees on
aportion of the acreage for ten, later eight, years. A settler had 13 yearsto “‘prove
up” his claim.

There was no residency requirement so a settler could be proving up on a timber
culture claim and a homestead or pre-emption claim at the same time.

The purpose of the timber culture act was to encourage settlers to plant trees to
supply firewood and timber for themselves. The law however rarely achieved
its purpose in Washington and other
western states.
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and other western states, it was soon judged to be an unworkable program.

When the timber culture law was repealed in 1891, settlers who had filed timber
culture claims could purchase the land for $1.25 an acre if they had complied with
the law for at least four years. Settlers who had complied with the law and
cultivated trees in good faith for eight years could receive patent to the land
regardless of the number of trees living.

While the timber culture law never served its stated purpose, it was very
important to the state’s early farms in eastern Washington. By using the
homestead, pre-emption and timber culture laws, a settler could acquire 480
acres of public land.

THE DESERT LAND ACT OF 1877

The Homestead Act didn’t apply well to the arid lands of the west. The Desert
Land Act of 1877 was one attempt to promote settlement and irrigation of the dry
areas of the public domain. It provided another way for settlers to acquire land.

While other settlement laws were restricted to 160-acre claims, the desert land
law granted up to 640 acres of surveyed or unsurveyed land to a settler for $1.25
per acre if the land was irrigated within three years. The settler paid $.25 per acre
upon original entry and $! per acre at final proof.

Very few land claims were proved up under the desert land law during
Washington’s territorial years. Two Centennial Farms, both located in Yakima
County, acquired land under the law.

The law was revised over the years to specify how much land had to be irrigated
and cultivated and to deal with irrigation projects but it never worked as
envisioned in Washington. Most of the desert land in eastern Washington was
irrigated and acquired under the Reclamation Act of 1902.

MAJOR REVISIONS TO THE PUBLIC LAND ACTS

The public land laws all had problems. These problems included numerous cases
of fraud and abuse by speculators, companies and others. Settlers, elected
officials and the General Land Office all called out for reform.

The Desert Land Act
was the first attempt
to promote the
settlement and
irrigation of the dry
areas of the west.

45D Te 5
C.6837

U.S. LAND OFFICE

DESERT-LAND ACT, MARCH 3, 1877.

—_— —

DECLARATION OF APPLICANT

Celitler o 1580

SﬂC...é(:,//-“ =i .l))/._%, H:mg::,../,fq.
Code G 39, /
. Ad e L, 1534
J‘.l, ﬂyj/q ~ l;« 9 : j‘,&l

17



Definitions

Homestead - a term commonly used to refer to the first set-
tlement of land whether it was acquired from the federal
government under the Homestead Act or not.

Prove up - Settlers applying for land from the federal
government had to “prove up,” or meet the requirements of
the law, before they could receive title to the land. Proving
up usually meant cultivating and living on the land.

Patent - Document, issued under the signature of the
President of the United States, which transfered legal title
of public land from the federal government to private or
state ownership. Final documentreceived by a settler from
the federal government. Dated when signed in Washing-
ton, D.C., which was months and often years after a settler
had “proved up” on a claim.

Lieu land - Land selected by the railroad or state in licu of
land granted to them by the federal goverment. For
example, the Northern Pacific Railroad was granted the
odd-numbered sections of land for 40 miles on either side
of its route. If any of that land was already reserved, sold,
or settled on before the railroad’s route was located, the
railroad could select land from the odd-numbered sections
located in the next 10 miles beyond the grant limits in place
ol that land.

After many years of attempting to revise or
repeal the various public lands acts, Con-
gress finally passed an act in 1891 that
made sweeping changes to how public
land could be acquired.

The act of 1891 repealed the pre-emption
law and the timber culture act, and revised
the homestead and desert land acts.

One major change to the homestead law was to increase the residency require-
ment before a homestead claim could be commuted from six months to 14
months. After 1891, the homestead law provided the way for most settlers to
acquire land from the government.

RAILROAD GRANT LANDS

The Northern Pacific Railroad played a significant role in the land history of
Washington and was the second most important source of land for Washington
settlers, particularly after 1880.

In 1864, Congress passed alaw incorporating the Northern Pacific Railroad. The
railroad was to construct a rail line and telegraph line from the Great Lakes to
Puget Sound. To cover construction costs, Congress granted the railroad every
odd-numbered section for 20 miles on either side of its route through states and
for 40 miles on either side of its line through territories. So, for every mile of
completed rail line in Washington, the railroad would earn 25,600 acres of land
that it could then sell.

The railroad did not file its proposed route with the General Land Office until
1870. The land office then withdrew millions of acres of land from entry under
the public land faws in Washington Territory. The original main route entered
Washington about 10 miles north of the Oregon line, travelled west to Wallula
and then down the north side of the Columbia River to Vancouver before heading
north to Puget Sound and Canada. The route was amended in 1872 to enter
Washington at Spokane and, in 1873, to terminate at Tacoma.

The route for the branch line was located in a sweeping arc from Lake Pend



The Northern Pacific Railroad
Company was granted more than nine
million acres of land in Washington
Territory that it could then sell to
cover the costs of building the
northern transcontinental rail line.

Oreille over the north Cascades to Tacoma. The route was amended in 1879 to
not split from the main line until it reached the Columbia River and to cross the
Cascades east of Tacoma. Together, the 80-mile wide grant limits for the main
and branch lines covered most of Washington.

Even-numbcred scctions within the grant limits were still open to settlers but the
rules were a little different. Until 1879 homesteaders were limited to 80 acres
and until 1889 preemptors had to pay $2.50 per acre instead of $1.25 per acre.
Those who settled on the odd-numbered railroad sections after the route was filed
were guaranteed the right to purchase the land from the railroad once the line was
completed and the land offered for sale. In 1879 the company fixed agricultural
land prices at $2.50 per acre, but settlers after 1883 had to pay the appraised value
of the land.

Those who settled on railroad land before the route was filed were allowed to
keep their land and the railroad was allowed to select lien lands from odd-
numbered sections in the ten miles beyond the grant limits.

The railroad was slow in coming and so settlement within the grant limits was
in a checkerboard fashion in the even-numbered sections. The railroad earned
land as it completed 25-mile sections of line and only then could it sell the land.

A great deal of controversy surrounded the Northern Pacific Ratlroad and its

Farm residence of Philip Yenney, Walla Walla Co., W.T. circa 1882.
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In most townships, sections 16 and 36 were state
school lands, odd-numbered sections were
railroad lands, and the remaining 16 sections
were open to entry under the public land acts.
(Below:) When a settler and the railroad claimed
the same land, a hearing, and sometimes a court
battle, took place to settle the claim.

grant. The original charter had specified that the railroad would begin work
within two years, construct a minimum of 50 miles each year and complete
construction of its route by 1876. The railroad received two extensions from
Congress and even still had only completed 106 miles of line in Washington,
from Kalama to Tacoma, by an interim deadline in 1873.

There were calls for forfeiture of the grant and numerous bills introduced in
Congress to act against the railroad and to provide relief to settlers who had
claimed land within the grant limits.

The railroad was able to use its influence and its continued work on the line to
stave off forfeiture. The transcontinental railroad link to Puget Sound, using the
Oregon Railway and Navigation Company’s tracks from Wallula to Portland,
was completed in 1883. The railroad’s branch line up the Yakima River Valley
and through Stampede Pass was completed in 1887 and became the main line
when the Northern Pacific finally abandoned its plans to construct a Wallula to
Portland line.

In the end, the Northern Pacific constructed only 366 of the more than 700 miles
it had proposed in Washington.

The railroad eventually received received title to 9.6 million acres in Washing-
ton. This land was then sold to settlers and others, including 900,000 acres to
lumberman Frederick Weyerhaeuser.

Many Centennial Farms purchased land from the railroad. For some it was their
first parcel of land. Many others purchased railroad land to add to land they had
acquired under the public land acts.

For many settlers, acquiring land involved a court battle with the railroad,
particularly for land in the 10 miles beyond the grant limits. This was the belt
of land the railroad could make its lieu land selections from to make up for lands
within the grant limits that were mineral lands, reserved for Indians or previously
settled by individuals.

In a landmark case involving the Miller/Powers Centennial Farm in Whitman
County, the Secretary of Interior ruled that the railroad did not have a guaranteed
right to land in the odd-numbered sections of the 10-mile belt if a settler had




already made claim to the land. This
ruling opened the way for over 2000 set-
tlers to receive title to land that the rail-
road had claimed should be included in
its grant,

Conflicting claims were sometimes re-
solved between the railroad and settlers
with a settler agreeing to relinquish his
claim to land in exchange for the right to
purchase that land at a reduced price.
Some Centennial Farms purchased rail-
road land for $1.00 and $2.00 per acre.

SCHOOL LANDS

Settlers also purchased land that had
been granted to the territory to support a
university and public schools. The
Organic Actof 1853, creating the Wash-
ington Territory, reserved sections 16
and 36, orequivalent lieu lands, in every
surveyed township for the support of
common schools. In 1854, two town-
ships to be selected by the territory, were
reserved for the support of a university.
Both reservations were to be granted to
the state when it was admitted to the
Union.

Generally, territories were not to use the
lands before attaining statehood. How-
ever, Washington Territory sold nearly
half of its university lands by 1864 and
started selling and leasing school lands
in the 1860’s.
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Agriculture ©

griculture in Washington State traces its history back to the Hudson’s
Bay Company. The company’s North American director, George Simpson,
insisted the company be self-sufficient. So, when the Hudson’s Bay Company
established Fort Vancouver in 1824, the fort’s chief factor, Dr. John MclLough-
lin, encouraged agriculture. The Hudson’s Bay Co. raised livestock, cultivated
land and planted orchards to supply food to its posts.

In 1836 the company’s livestock inventory included 1,000 cattle, 700 hogs, 200
sheep, 500 horses, and 160 oxen.

In addition to agricultural production at its northwesi trading posts, the company
established farms at Nisqually on Puget Sound and in the Cowlitz River Valley.
The farms, organized as the Puget Scund Agricultural Company. not only
supplied agricultural products to the company but to export markets as well.

Raising livestock and cultivating the land was also important to the settlements
established by early missionaries who came to the northwest in the 1830’s.

According to the 1850 census there were 62 farms in the Oregon Ferritory north
of the Columbia River. For the next 30 years, Washington’s population and
number of farms grew at a steady rate. In 1860 Wa%hmgton had 1,330 farms,
almost all in western Washington.

By 1870 the number of farms in the state had increasedito 3,127, 'Two-thirds of
these farms were less than 50 acres iu size. Only 52 were 300 acres or more in
size. Most farms were located in western W-ashington but, by now, the settlement
and cultivation of land in eastern Washington was underway. In 18§70, Walla
Walla County, which at that time included much of eastern Washington, had 653
of the territory’s farms and more than 25 percent of the improved land.

Washington’s leading crops in 1870 were potatoes, oats and wheat.. In livestock,
the census counted more than 44,000 sheep and more than 44,000 dairy and beef
cattle.

In the next ten years the number of farms doubled, with 6,529 farms evenly
divided between western and eastern Washington.

Washington agriculture shifted from primarily stock raising to crop growing
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early in its history. As settlers came to the state, the public domain and its free
open range shrank. Severe eastern Washington winters like the winter of 1889-
90 resulted in a tremendous loss of livestock.

Inthe 1880°s Washington’s population and farm numbers boomed. The northern
transcontinental railroad was completed in 1883 and the railroads finally linked
Washington’s productive farm land to eastern markets and the west coast ports.

By 1890, Washington State had mere than 18,000 farms producing $13.7 million
inagricultural products. Over75 percent of the state’s population lived on farms,
and agriculture and timber were Washmgton s leading industries.

Agriculture in Washington has made some dramatic changes over the last 100
years. A comparison of the 1890 Census of Agriculture with the agricultural
statistics of today shows an industry that has become both larger and more
productive.

The 1890 Census of Agriculture reported 18,056 farms with more than 60
percent of the farms located in eastern Washington. Whitman and Spokane
counties led the state in nimber of farms with more than 2,000 farms each. The
wremendous productivity of Washington’s dryland wheat farms was already
well-known. Walla Walla and Whitman counties were each producing two
million bushels of wheat and shipping to markets in California, eastern stales and
foreign countries. The railroad had brought thousands of new settlers to farm in
Spokane and Lincoln counties. Spokane was a boom town and area farms
supplied food for the new local market.

In western Washington, the greatest number of farms were in Clark, King and
Lewis counties. Timber was the primary industry. It was profitable and brought
quick returns, However, gradually, small farms were being established on the
cutover benchlands. The combined population of Seattle and Tacoma had
skyrocketed from 4,631 in 1880 to 78,843 in 1890. Farms around these cities had
a rapidly expanding market for their products.

Washington has twice as many farms today as it did when it first became a state.
Just about one-third of the state’s 38,000 farms are located in western Washing-
ton and two-thirds are in eastern Washington. Yakima County, which had less
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than 400 farms in 1890, now
leads all counties in number of
farms with over 4,000. The
number of acres in farms has
grown from just over 4 mil-
lion acres in 1890 to 16 mil-
lion acres today.

Notonly have the number and
distribution of Washington’s
farms changed but so has the
character of the farms.

Most of the farms in (890 were self-sufficient operations with a garden, some
chickens, amilk cow, hogs, and beef cattle, horses to do the work, and grain crops
to feed the livestock. Surplus products were sold to earn cash income to clear or
improve additional land and purchase goods.

Already some specialization was starting to be seen in Washington agriculture.
In eastern Washington farms averaged almost 300 acres and wheat was the main
cash crop. Cattle and sheep grazed the bunch grass-covered hills and openrange.
In western Washington, potatoes, hops, market garden produce and milk were all
important farm products. Farms here averaged 120 to 150 acres in size.

Today’s farms are much more specialized and the range of crops and livestock
produced is even more diverse. Western Washington farms average less than
100 acres in size and produce most of the state’s berries, Christmas trees, green
peas, milk, seafood and poultry products. The irrigated lands of central
Washington include orchards, vineyards and vegetable farms of less than 50
acres and farms of 500 acres or more that harvest potatoes, hay, corn and wheat.
Dryland farms and ranches in eastern Washington are often thousands of acres
in size.

In 1890, families often earned their primary income off the farm—in logging,
mining or transportation. Today almost 45 percent of the state’s farms are small
part-time operations that depend on non-farm income for support. Most of these
small farms are in western Washington. Full-time commercial operations are
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located thoughout the state and account for most of the state’s agricultural
production.

Perhaps the most dramatic changes of the past 100 years are found by comparing
agricultural production.

In 1890, Washington growers produced 17 bushels of wheat per acre. Today
yields have more than tripled, averaging 60 bushels of wheat per acre. Potato
yields are 18 times what they were in 1890. Washington growers averaged a
record 55,000 pounds of potatoes per acre in 1988 and lead the world in
production per acre.

Apples were already the number one fruit in 1890 but the 7,000 tons produced
then are just a fraction of the almost 2 million tons produced by Washington apple
growers in 1988. The 1890 census reported 315,000 bearing apple trees spread
throughout the state. The most recent fruit tree survey estimated Washington
growers had more than 30 million apple trees in their orchards.

These dramatic differences are the result of several factors, including improved
plant varieties, better fertilizer practices and extensive irrigation.

Livestock production has also increased. Milk production per cow today is six
times what it was in 1890 while the number of milk cows has tripled. Washington
leads the nation in production per cow. Beef and poultry production have also
increased dramatically.

Notall commodities, however, have shown production increases. Sheep and hog
numbers are much lower today than they were in 1890. Oat acreage has dropped
in half as tractors and other motor vehicles replaced horses on the farm. The shift
from the horse to the tractor also brought on other significant changes including
the ability for one person to work more acres and the development of larger
farms.

Total agricultural production has increased and so has the total value of that
production. The value of crops and livestock produced on Washington farms in
1890 was a substantial $13.7 million. In 1988, Washington farmers produced
more than $3.6 billion in commodities, more than 250 times that of 100 years ago.



The market for Washington’s farm prod-
ucts has also grown. Though exports
were important to the wheat market,
Washington’s early farms provided food
primarily for the farm family and local
markets. Today, only 25 percent of the
state’s agricultural production is sold in
the state. Half is sold in the rest of the
United States and 25 percent is sold to
foreign countries.

The nature of the industry has also
changed as raw commodities are not
only produced in the state but processed
and packaged here, too. The food proc-
essing industry generates more than $4.5
billion in sales annually.

Washington’s Centennial Farms were
typical diversified homesteads in 1890.
Today, they are typical of the farms in
their areas. Dairy farms dominate the
Centennial Farms in northwestern
Washington. Wheat is grown on all the
Centennial Farms in Whitman County
and most other counties of eastern
Washington. Central Washington farms
rely on irrigation to produce their hay,
fruit and vegetable crops.

As they were in 1890, Washington’s
Centennial Farms are part of one of the
state’s most important industries.

Historic Comparisons

HARVESTED PRODUCTION
ACRES
FIELD CROPS
Wheat Bu 372,658 6,345,426
Barley Bu 51,551 1,269,140
Oats Bu 65,089 2,273,182
All Hay Tons 286,013 395,770
Hops Lbs 5,113 8,313,280
FRUIT PRODUCTION
Apples Tons 7,085
All Cherries Tons 281
Peaches Tons 1,524
All Pears Tons 672
LIVESTOCK NUMBER
Sheep Head 265,267
All Cattle Head 255,134
Milk Cows Head 70,721
Milk Lbs 170,910,217
Hogs Head 90,274
Chickens Head 779,972
Source: 1890 U.S. Census of Agriculture and Washington Agricultural Statistics Service

HARVESTED
ACRES

2,060,000
560,000
37,000
800,000
23,100

PRODUCTION

124,620,000
34,720,000
2,479,000
2,833,000
39,751,000

PRODUCTION
1,950,000
63,200

25,000

310,000

NUMBER
74,000
1,300,000
216,000
3,966,000,000
53,000
6,085,000
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CLARK « COWLITZ « PACIFIC « KING
GRAYS HARBOR ¢« THURSTON ¢ KITSAP

WAHKIAKUM « LEWIS « PIERCE

. MASON ¢ JEFFERSON ¢ CLALLAM

Southwest Washington and South Puget Sound

ashington’s earliest pioneers made their homes in southwest Wash-
ington and south Puget Sound. They acquired land by taking donation land
claims of up to 640 acres. Some of these pioneers were the founders of
Centennial Farms. Five of the 48 Centennial Farms in this region were estab-
lished by 1856.

Although many of the state’s oldest Centennial Farms are in this region, most of
the Centennial Farms in southwest Washington and south Puget Sound were
established in the 1880’s. In many cases these later farms were founded by
individuals who purchased land from earlier settlers or the Northern Pacific
Railroad.

Like many western Washington settlers, farming was not the only source of
income for these Centennial Farm founders. Many worked in the timber industry
as loggers, millworkers or carpenters. Others operated stores or roadhouses.
Some helped build roads and the railroad.

Most farms were established “up river,” in the valleys and adjacent prairies of
western Washington. Often the first order of business was to clear heavy timber.

With the completion of the railroad the population of western Washington’s
cities skyrocketed. The combined population of Seattle and Tacoma leaped from
less than 5,000 in 1880 to almost 80,000 in 1890. Clark, King and Lewis were
major agricultural counties, each with more than 750 farms in 1890.

These farms helped supply the local city markets. King County led the state in
potato production. King and Pierce counties were leaders in market garden
products. King and Clark were leaders in milk production.

Most of the early farms gave way to the cities they supplied. Today there are
more than 8,400 farms in the region, including more than 1,100 farms each in
King, Clark, Pierce and Lewis counties. Most farms are part-time operations of
less than 50 acres.

Centennial Farms are spread throughout the 13 counties in this region with the
greatest number in Lewis County. Most of these farms are 50to 300 acres in size.
Most raise beef or other livestock and harvest hay and grain and sometimes
timber.
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The Anderson Farm Clark

‘Bi-21 Tarm.s Clark

Owners: Kent E. Anderson
Location of Farm: One mile east of La Center on County Road 41

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1865 - 1900 Magilbra Anderson Grandfather
1900 - 1946 Curtis Anderson Father

1946 - Present  Kent E. Anderson

In 1864, 31-year-old Magilbra Anderson and his wife Caroline
traveled by wagon train and river boat to Oregon from his
birthplace of Union County, lllinois. After working for a Sauvie Is-
land farmer over the winter, the Anderson’s homesteaded 160 acres
east of La Center. Anderson cleared land, built a log cabin, barn
and outbuildings and began to farm. He and Caroline had nine
children.

Acres in original parcel: 159.05 Acres still retained: 59

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Cattle, hogs, wheat, oats, and potatoes;
1988 - Hay, grain, and cattle

Additional information: This tract of land was burned-over forest land
with a cover of brush and stumps when the homestead was granted. Since
1925 the entire tract has been improved and in agricultural production.
The present owner is retired and lives in the farmhouse built in 1901. The
66-acre farm is leased out for hay and grain production and for the grazing
of cattle.
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Owners: Bi-Zi Farms: "Bill" and Peggy Zimmerman
Location of Farm: 6 miles northeast of Vancouver on N.E. 119th St.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1872 - 1894 Gabriel Zimmerman Great Grandfather
1894 - 1922 Edward Gabriel Zimmerman Grandfather

1922 - 1980 Arbra W. Zimmerman Father

1980 - Present  Wm. F. "Bill" Zimmerman

In 1872 Gabriel Zimmerman paid $250 for 40 acres Gottlieb
Wagenblast had homesteaded in 1866. In 1873 Zimmerman pur-
chased an additional 40 acres from J.E. O’ Flarity for $100 and in
1882 80 acres from John Person for $400. In addition to farming,
Zimmerman was a brickmaker. Born in lowa, Zimmerman was 32
years old when he settled in Clark County. He was married to Jan-
nette Vincent, and the couple had nine children.

Acres in original parcel: 40 Acres still retained: 40

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay and cattle; 1988 - Oats and certified
clover seed

Additional information: In the early 1920’s, a hatchery was built by E.G.
Zimmerman and his son Arbra and baby chicks were sold from the farm
flock. Today, Bill Zimmerman farms about 700 acres. The grain is
cleaned and delivered to Portland and Seattle race tracks.



Tﬁ@ Wf‘iﬁﬁt fﬁlrm Clark

Owners: Alfred and Linda Wright, Ronald and Charline Wright, Claude
Wright
Location of Farm: 4.8 miles east of Washougal on S.E. 70th St.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1870 - 1888 Stephen and Sarah Wright Great Grandparents
1888 - 1903 Stephen and Maggie Wright Great Grandparents
1903 - 1909 Stephen and Mary Wright Great Grandparents
1909 - 1968 Clarence and Beatrice Wright Grandparents

1968 - Present  Alfred J. and Linda Wright Parents

1974 - Present  Ronald G. and Charline Wright
1985 - Present  Claude K. Wright

The Steve and Emily Wright family came west from Kansas in
1863 and settled on the donation land claim of Emily’s brother
Joseph Durgan. In 1870 their son Stephen Jr., with his wife Sarah,
homesteaded 160 acres just to the north, adjacent to Lawton Creek.
Stephen Jr. cleared the land, constructed buildings and put in an or-
chard. He made final proof on his homestead in 1876.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 80

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Oats, wheat, hay, horses, and apples; 1988
- Hay, pasture, forage crop, and beef cattle

Additional information: Stephen and Sarah Wright had nine children. In
1881 six of the children died from diphtheria or scarlet fever over a period
of six weeks. Family history tells that two-year old Clarence survived be-
cause a neighbor suggested giving him a dose of kerosene. Today Alfred
and his two sons, Ronald and Claude, own and operate the 80-acre farm.

The Hazen/Frasier Farm Clrk

Owners: Dennis Jay Frasier
Location of Farm: 21 miles north of Vancouver at the corner of Hoff and
Grantham Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1882 - 1940 Enoch and Daisy Hazen Grandparents
1940 - 1943 Oscar Wilson Step Grandfather
1943 - 1985 Mary Hazen Frasier Mother

1985 - Present  Dennis Jay Frasier

28-year-old Enoch Hazen travelled by train from his native In-
diana to San Francisco, then by boat to Portland. He then went up
the Lewis River and, in 1882, homesteaded 120 acres northeast of
La Center. Hazen added on to the existing house, built a barn and
cleared 40 acres. He and his first wife, Lena Bell Morris, had three
children. He and his second wife, Daisy A. Cummings, had three
children. In addition to farming, Hazen was a carpenter, trapper,
did some gold mining and supplied logging camps with beef.

Acres in original parcel: 120 Acres still retained: 20

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Wheat, oats, horses, and dairy and beef
cattle; 1988 - Beef

Additional information: From 1891-1894, Enoch Hazen helped organize
the building of the church now known as Hazen Chapel at View. Enoch
lost his eyesight in a dynamite powder blast in 1914, but continued to do
carpentry work. He died in 1931 and Daisy married Oscar Wilson in
1934. Today three generations live on the original place. Enoch Hazen’s
descendents total the better part of 250 and most live in Clark County.
Dennis Jay Frasier is the current owner and operator of the 20-acre farm.
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The O Keefe Farm Clark

The Mattson Farm

Clark

Owners: Timothy Roy and Kathleen H. O’Keefe
Location of Farm: One mile north of Hockinson

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1881 - 1930 Leonard and Louise Brown Grandparents
1930 - 1965 Eugene and Hilda O’Keefe Parents

1965 - Present  Timothy and Kathleen O’Keefe

In 1881 Leonard Brown, age 47, purchased 69.33 acres from Wil-
liam B. Cambell for $300. He built a house and barn and farmed
the land. Brown, who was also a fisherman, was born in Finland
and lived in Astoria, Oregon prior to moving onto this farm. He
and his wife Louise had four children.

Acres in original parcel: 69.33 Acres still retained: 69.33

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Milk cows and chickens; 1988 - Grain,
hay, and beef

Additional information: The original barn is still in use. Today Tim and
Kathy O’Keefe own and operate the 69.33 acre farm and lease an addition-
al 44 acres.
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Owners: Laine Kruusma Mattson, Otto Kruusma Mattson, Erik Olav
Mattson, Allan Henrik Mattson
Location of Farm: 1 mile north of Hockinson

Dates of
Ownership

1883 - 1911
1911 - 1945
1945 - 1973
1973 - 1976
1976 - Present
1976 - Present

Name

John Erik Mattson

John Warren Mattson
Franklin Lewis Mattson
Franklin Lewis Mattson Estate
Laine K. Mattson

Otto K., Erik O. and Allan H.
Mattson

Relationship to
Current Owner

Great Grandfather
Grandfather
Father

Mother

Born in what is now Finland, John Erik Mattson went to sea when
he was 15 years old. He spent 15 years as a sailor and came to the
United States in 1892. He lived in San Francisco working as a bay
pilot prior to coming to the Washington Territory. He purchased
140 acres from Mr. and Mrs. Matt Spurgen in 1883 and cleared the
land for farming and a house site. Mattson was a logger as well as
a farmer. He had three children by his first wife Erika and one
child by his second wife Maria.

Acres in original parcel: 140 Acres still retained: 81.29

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Mixed farming; 1988 - Hay and trees

Additional information: Part of the original home, built in the 1870’s and
moved in the 1880’s, remains. The original barn is still used for equip-
ment storage. Today the Mattsons own and operate 81 acres.



Wahkiakum

The Foster Farm

Owners: Elizabeth Foster Doumit
Location of Farm: 1.5 miles west of Cathlamet on Foster Rd.

Dates of Eelationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1865 - 1924 John J. and Margaret Foster Grandparents
1924 - 1955 Robert Neil and Ellen Foster Parents

1955 - 1982 Mitchell and Elizabeth Doumit  Husband

1982 - Present  Elizabeth Foster Doumit

Born in South Carolina, John J. Foster taught school-in-&labama
and Mississippi before catching gold fever-and heading west to
California. He mined not only in California; but also Austialia and
Idaho. He came to Washington in 1864 and selected a farm in.the
FElochoman Valley near Cathlamet. Foster was 41 and his Frish-
born wife Margaret Boyd was 21 when he prrchased’320 acres’
from Charlotte Birnie for $400 in 1865. Margaret received.an ad-
jacent 160 acres from William McCullough for 31 ir 1868. Foster
cleared the land and began to farm. The Fosters had 11 children.

Acres in original parcel: 320 Acres still retained: 320

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Apples, potatoes beef cattle, dalry herd,
and pigs; 1988 - Beef cattle

Additional information: In addition to farming, Joh_n Foster served as.
probate judge, county treasurer, county superintendent of schools, and
county commissioner. In 1879 he was elected to represent Wahkiakum
and Cowlitz counties in the territorial legislature and, later, served as a rep-
resentative in the state legislature. Today the Centennial Farm land is
owned and managed by Elizabeth Doumit, who currently rents the 324-
acre farm to James O. Anderson.

The _
Klady/Guild/Taggart Farm

Owners: Osa May (Davis) Taggart
Location of Farm: Northwest of Woodland on Guild Rd.

Cowlitz

Dates ? Relatlonsth to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1871 - 1911 Columbia L. and Sarah Klady Great Grandparents
1911 - 1969 Jessie Jacob Guild Grandfather

1969 - 1971 Emily Graciebelle (Guild) Davis Mother

1971 - Present  Osa May (Davis) Taggart
Columbig Klady was 7 years old when he came west with his

parents in1852. His fathertook up a donation land claim in
Oregon. In 1863, Klady and his mother Mary came to the Lewis

. River area where her brother lived. In 1871 Klady, now 26, pur-

- «chased 235 acres of Solomon Strong’s donation land claim for

. $1000. He. cleared the land ana’ built a storage shed, a dairy barn

" -and the existing house. K laa’y married Sarah Isabelle Lacky and
theyhad two daughters. In addition to farming, Klady was the local
‘mail carrier for 12 years.

Acres in original parcel: 234. 44 Acres still retained: 9.25
Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Grain, hay, and dairy cows; 1988 - Main-
. tain original orchard apples ‘pears, prunes, plums, and grapes
Additional information: Kilady was a notary public, justice of the peace,
school board member, and: served as county superintendent of schools
" from 1876-78. Klady was active in Grange for more than 50 years. The
original home is presently occupied by 87-year-old Emily Graciebelle
Davis. Seven acres of the Centennial Farm land is leased out. The
remaining 2 acres is an orchard and large garden farmed by Osa Taggart.
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N.B. Gardner Tree Farm Cowiit

The Bebe Farm Cowiitz

Owners: N. B. Gardner, Sr.
Location of Farm: Junction of Lapham and South Toutle Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1882 - 1918 Napolean Boneapart Gardner Grandfather
1918 - 1960 Harry Nelson Gardner Father

1960 - Present  N. B. Gardner Sr.

44-year-old Napolean B. Gardner homesteaded 160 acres east of
Toutle in 1882. Gardner purchased the rights to the land from
Henry Powelson who had decided to relinquish the homestead claim
he had made on the quarter section. Gardner, his wife Nellie and
their three young children moved right in. Almost immediately
Gardner started a store and blacksmith shop. A post office was es-
tablished with Gardner as postmaster. Gardner’s three brothers
also came out and homesteaded. Nellie's family, the Laphams, also
came to the area. Gardner was born in Longton, lllinois and
moved his family to the Toutle area from Kansas. Five more
children were born in Washington. Two sons died while young.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 55

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, cattle, potatoes, carrots, apples,
prunes and cherries; 1988 - Timber and hay

Additional information: Napolean Boneapart Gardner owned several
thousand acres when he died in 1918. His heirs still own several thousand
acres in the Toutle Valley. The original land was divided among the three
surviving sons. N.B. Gardner, Sr. currently farms 505 acres including the
land where the original barn and corrals stood.

Owners: Alden A. and Ann L. Bebe
Location of Farm: 5 miles northwest of Castle Rock on Bebe Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1889 - 1927 Peder Jensen Bebe Grandfather
1927 - 1984 Amon Bebe Father

1984 - Present  Alden Arlen Bebe

Peder Jensen Bebe, age 30, purchased 40 acres from the North-
ern Pacific Railroad in 1889 at a cost of $4 per acre. He cleared
some timber and farmed the land. Bebe was born in Copenhagen,
Denmark and lived in Minnesota prior to coming to the Washington
Territory. In addition to farming, Bebe worked in logging. Bebe
and his wife, Maren Kirstine Johanson, had eight children.

Acres in original parcel: 40 Acres still retained: 40

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Cattle and horses; 1988 - Appaloosa hor-
ses and Douglas Fir trees

Additional information: The present owner, Alden Bebe, is the last surviv-
ing male family member. The property will pass on to his only daughter
who will reside on the 40-acre farm with her family.



The Morehead Farm

Pacific

Owners: John A. Morehead
Location of Farm: First farm north of the port dock in Nahcotta

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1885 -1934 John A. Morehead Father

1934 - Present  John A. Morehead, Jr.

There were about 15 acres in the parcel John A. Morehead pur-
chased from R.A. Seaborg in 1885 for $20 per acre. Born in Miner-
va, Ohio, Morehead lived in Oysterville prior to settling in Nahcotta
at the age of 25. He put in roads, fencing, a bulb farm and built
barns and made part of his property a public park. He and his wife,
Elizabeth Brown, were the parents of three children. In addition to
farming, Morehead was a general merchandise storekeeper.

Acres in original parcel: 15 Acres still retained: 1

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Vegetables, cows, and chickens; 1988 -
Vegetables and chickens

Additional information: None of the original buildings remain however
some of the timber from the old barn were used in constructing the present
house in 1947. Today John A. Morehead, Jr. farms on the one acre that
remains from his father’s land.

Pacific

Habersetzer Family Farm

Owners: Bob and Lynette Falkner
Location of Farm: 18 miles east of Raymond on Highway 6 in Frances

Dates of Relationship to

Ownership Name Current Owner

1887 - 1912 Leonhard and Rosa Habersetzer Great Grandparents

1912 - 1929 Cornelius Habersetzer Great Uncle

1929 - 1959 William and Elizabeth Grandparents
Habersetzer

1959 - 1983 Victor and Ruth Habersetzer Parents

1983 - Present  Bob and Mary Lynette Falkner

In 1887 Leonhard Habersetzer paid the Northern Pacific Rail-
road $7.50 per acre for 80 acres. Habersetzer was born in Bavaria,
Germany in 1844 and was 43 years old when he came west from
Colby, Wisconsin to settle in Washington Territory. He built a
house and barn and planted an orchard. He and his Swiss-born
wife, Rosa Steible, had 13 children. In addition to farming, Haber-
setzer also did logging.

Acres in original parcel: 80 Acres still retained: 80

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Grain, hay, dairy cattle, and work horses;
1988 - Timber and beef cattle

Additional information: Over the years additional purchases have increased
the farm size to approximately 1,800 acres. Today the farm is owned and
operated by Leonhard and Rosa Habersetzer’s great granddaughter, Mary
Lynette Habersetzer Falkner and her husband Bob. The timberlands are
jointly owned by Ruth Habersetzer and daughters Barbara Fonda,
Catherine Cgraggen and Lynette Falkner.
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The Francis Layton Farm i

The Francis Layton
ﬂome/?(irkend'g[[ Farm Lewis

Owners: Oren and Marie Layton, Tom and Sharon Layton
Location of Farm: East of Toledo off Highway 505 on Layton Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1851 - 1925 Francis and Sirrilda Layton Great Grandparents
1925 - 1943 Emanuel Layton Grandfather

1943 - Present  Oren and Marie Layton Parents

1988 - Present  Tom and Sharon Layton

In 1849 23-year-old Francis Layton travelled from Logansport,
Indiana to what was then the Oregon Territory. In 1851 he settled
on 641 acres of land that he acquired from the U.S. government as a
Donation Land Claim. Layton cleared some of the timber and built
a house and barn. He farmed the land and raised cattle, hogs and
sheep. Layton was married to Sirrilda Beth Minerva Prince, and
they had 12 children. In 1867 he added to his holdings by purchas-
ing an adjacent 640 acres from Henry Miles. That land originally
was settled as a Donation Land Claim by Sirrilda’s uncle, J.C.
Davis.

Acres in original parcel: 641 Acres still retained: 65

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Grain, beef; 1988 - Grain, peas, beef cows

Additional information: Francis died in 1889. After Sirrilda died, the land
was split among their surviving children. This Centennial Farm land was
passed on through their son Emanuel. The original orchard still remains.
Today the land is part of a 160-acre farm and is operated by Tom Layton.
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Owners: Gary Kirkendoll
Location of Farm: East of Toledo off Highway 505 on Layton Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1851 - 1925 Francis and Sirrilda Layton Great Grandparents
1925 - 1931 Caroline Evans Great Aunt

1931 - 1936 Frank Evans Cousin

1936 - 1960 Elias and Margaret Layton Grandparents

1960 - 1966 E. L. Layton Uncle

1966 - 1975 Edith Layton Kirkendoll Mother

1975 - Present  Gary Kirkendoll

Francis Layton was born in New Jersey and came west from In-
diana with his family. They arrived in Oregon Territory on Decem-
ber 1, 1849. Layton settled on a 641-acre claim up the Cowlitz
River on March 1, 1851 and proved up on his claim in 1854.
Layton’s claim adjoined claims settled on at the same time by his
Jather Samuel and brother Charles and J.C. Davis, who was the
uncle of his young wife Sirrilda. Layton was also a carpenter and
worked part-time in Portland during the early years to finance im-
provements to his property.

Acres in original parcel: 641 Acres still retained: 60.2

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, grain, livestock; 1988 - Red angus
cattle, wheat, barley

Additional information: Today Gary Kirkendoll owns and operates about
280 acres which includes 60.2 acres of the original donation claim. His
house is on the same spot where Francis and Sirrilda built their home.



The Layton/Kirkendoll Farm e

The Layton/Armstrong Farm e

Owners: Edith Layton Kirkendoll
Location of Farm: East of Toledo off Highway 505 on Layton Rd.

Dates of ?elc_ztionship to
Ownership Name - Current Owner -
1867 - 1894 Francis and Sirrilda Layton Grandfather

1894 - 1953 Elias and Margaret Layton Father

1953 - Present  Edith Layton Kirkendoll

In 1867 40-year-old Francis Layton doubled the size of his farm
by purchasing 640 acres from Henry Miles. Miles had purchased
the land only three years earlier from J.C. Davis. Davis had settled
on the land in 1851 and acquired it as a Donation Land Claim.
Layton had also acquired his original parcel as a donation claim,
settling at the same time as Davis in 1851. Layton was married to
Davis’ niece Sirilda.

Acres in original parcel: 640 Acres still retained: 140

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, grain, and all animals; 1988 - Hay,
grain, and beef cattle

Additional information: This Centennial Farm land was passed on from
Francis Layton through his son Elias. Books about the LLaytons and the
Davis’, “The Children of Samuel Layton" and "'Prince and Davis of Ten-
nesee”, have been published by Robert Layton, a descendent, and are in
local libraries and the state library. Today Edith Kirkendoll and her son
Gary operate the 140-acre farm.

Owners: Leroy and Edna Armstrong
Location of Farm: 5 miles east of Toledo on Layton Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner

1867 - 1873 Francis and Sirrilda Layton Great Grandparents

1873 - 1874 Levi and Mary Prince Great Great Uncle, Aunt
1874 - 1894 Francis and Sirilda Layton Great Grandparents

1894 - 1915 Harry and Daisy Layton Hurst ~ Great Uncle and Aunt
1915 - 1917 Lettie Shultz Great Aunt

1917 - 1953 Elias P. and Maggie E. Layton ~ Grandparents

1953 - 1961 Elva Armstrong Mother

1953 - Present  Leroy and Edna Armstrong

The land Francis Layton purchased from Henry Miles in 1867
was the 1851 Donation Land Claim of Johnathon Davis. Davis was
from Tennessee and had come to Oregon Territory in 1849. He was
about 34 years old when he and four of his children settled in the
Cowlitz River Valley. Layton had also come to the area in 1851 and
taken a 641-acre claim adjacent to Davis’ land. Layton was married
to Davis’ niece, Sirrilda Prince, and they had 12 children.

Acres in original parcel: 640 Acres still retained: 160

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, grain, cattle, horses, sheep, chickens;
1988 - Christmas trees

Additional information: Davis was a county commissioner and supervisor
of the Cowlitz School District. This land has been owned by three of
Layton’s children. It is now owned by great grandson Leroy Armstrong
and his wife Edna and is operated by the Douglas Fir Christmas Tree Co.




The Wales Farm

Lewis

The Olsen Farm Lewis

Owners: Florence M. Snyder
Location of Farm: 6 miles east of Toledo

Dates of_ Relationship to
0wnershén Name - Current Owner
1885 - 1948 R.T. and Cora Wales Parents

1948 - Present  Florence M. Snyder

31-year-old R.T. Wales purchased 69 acres from the Northern
Pacific Railroad in 1885 at a cost of about $10.00 per acre. He was
born in Canada and lived in Ethel, Washington prior to moving
onto his land. He immediately started clearing the heavy forest and
built a house, barn and outbuildings. Wales and his first wife Clara
Fowl had two children. Clara died in 1899 and Wales married
Cora McCune in 1902. They had three children.

Acres in original parcel: 69 Acres still retained: 69
Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - In 1889, the land was heavy forest. He

immediately started clearing the land.; 1988 - Peas, orchard, and timber

Additional information: One of the first things Wales did after moving on

the place was to develop the spring as a water supply for the home. "The
Wales Spring” is still a landmark in the county, and people come from
miles around for water. In 1905 Wales planted 20 acres of hops. For
years, neighbors and folks from miles around spent their late summers
camped at the Wales hop yard picking hops. Today the Centennial Farm
land is part of 180 acres owned by R.T. and Cora Wales’ daughter
Florence.

Owners: Hazel Olsen
Location of Farm: East of the Ethel Post Office on Highway 12

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1883 - 1901 John and Katharine E. Delfil Grandparents-in-law
1901 - 1952 Albert, Sr. and Anna J. Olsen Parents-in-law
1952 - 1988 Albert, Jr. and Hazel (Foister) Husband

Olsen
1988 - Present  Hazel Olsen

John Delfil and his family came to Washington from Sweden in
1883 and homesteaded 160 acres on Lacamas Creek at what is now
Ethel. He cleared the land to build a home and began to farm. Del-
fil had married Katherine Elizabeth Mattsson, a widow with two
daughters. The girls, Anna and Mary, took the Delfil name. Anna
married Albert Olsen, Sr. in 1896 and inherited the north 80 acres
in 1901 upon the death of John Delfil.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 80

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Oats, potatoes, cows, horses, and chick-
ens; 1988 - Cattle and hay

Additional information: Anna and Albert Olsen ran a roadhouse. Their
barn was always full of horses and the house overflowed with travelers
from eastern Lewis County or Chehalis. Later, the homestead contained
the local switchboard. Some of the original buildings still stand. Today
Hazel Olsen, with the help of her son Ken Olsen and his family, operate
the 200-acre farm.



Lewis

The Wilson Farm

Lewis

Nelson Tree Farm, Inc.

Owners: William John Wilson
Location of Farm: 4 miles south of Winlock on Avery Rd. W.

Dates of _Relﬁonship to
Ownership Name - Current Owner
1887 - 1941 Robert H. Wilson Father

1941 - Present  William J. Wilson

Robert H. Wilson was 25 years old when he and his wife, Augusta
Outtillie, moved from lllinois to Winlock in 1887 and contracted to
buy 40 acres of land from the Northern Pacific Railroad. He
cleared the land and built a house and outbuildings. The purchase
of the land was completed in 1892 with Wilson paying the railroad
34.75 per acre.  In addition to farming, Wilson was a millworker,
carpenter and road worker. The Wilsons had one son and two
daughters.

Acres in original parcel: 40 Acres still retained: 19.5

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Diversified farming, oxen, horses, cattle,
and chickens; 1988 - Hay, pasture, and cattle

Additional information: The present owner, William Wilson, lives just
north of the farm with his wife Marjorie. Their son Douglas Wilson lives
on the farm and helps operate the 100-acre farm. Thirty years ago Wil-
liam Wilson built a sawmill on the farm and operated it until recently.

Owners: Nelson Tree Farm, Inc.
Location of Farm: 2 miles west of Evaline at end of Lentz Rd.

Dates of _RTationship to
Ownership  Name = - ~ Cwrrent Owner
1889 - 1938 Nels Nelson Father

1938 - Present  George H. Nelson

An immigrant from Denmark, Nels Nelson came to the United
States in 1887 and briefly lived in Minnesota and then Tacoma
before purchasing 80 acres near Winlock from the Northern Pacific
Railroad for $550 in 1889. The 24-year-old Nelson built a small
log cabin and began to clear the land. He eventually cleared 40
acres by hand and farmed the cleared ground. Nels and his wife
Helen married in 1912 and had two children.

Acres in original parcel: 80° Acres still retained: 80

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Clover, oats, garden vegetables, cows,
and chickens; 1988 - Douglas fir trees

Additional information: In 1958, George Nelson plowed and tilled 52 acres
of pasture land and planted Douglas Fir trees to begin the Nelson Family
Tree Farm. Today the 160-acre tree farm is managed by George Nelson
with the help of his family. George Nelson was Washington State’s Tree
Farmer of the Year in 1989.
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The Landes Farm

Lewis

The Crumb Farm

Lewis

Owners: Paul R. and Helen J. (Landes) Buntain
Location of Farm: 2 miles east of Mossyrock on Schoonover Rd.

Dates of Relalionshﬂ; to
Ownership Name - Current Owner
1879 - 1900 C.T. Landes Grandfather
1900 - 1942 George Harvey Landes Father

1942 - Present  Paul R. and Helen J. Landes

Buntain

In 1875, Civil War veteran C.T. Landes, his wife Rachel Moor-
man Landes and their four children left Prairie Grove, lowa by
train for Sacramento, California. They traveled by boat to Portland
and then stayed in Clackamas County, Oregon for three years.

They went up the Cowlitz River to Toledo, getting off at Cowlitz
Landing. In 1878 the family stayed at Newaukum, near Chehalis,
while 38-year-old Landes went to Mossyrock alone to slash a road
to his homestead and build a house. Landes moved his family to the
homestead in June 1880, a three-day journey by ox team. The 160-
acre homestead he applied for in 1878 was proved up and recorded
in 1886. The Landes’ had two more children after settling in the
west.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 38

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Grain, hay, hogs, milk cows, and turkeys;
1988 - Hay, beef cattle, geese, ducks, and chickens

Additional information: The name Landes means "lots of land.” Helen Lan-
des Buntain was born in the present home and has lived her entire life on
the farm. She and her husband Paul took over the farm after George
Landes’ death in 1942. Today the farm totals 58 acres.

Owners: Eugene Frank Bingaman
Location of Farm: 1 mile west of Morton on Highway 12

Dates of Relationship to

Ownership Name Current Owner

1884 - 1934 William T. and Anna Marie Grandparents
Crumb

1934 - 1952 Anna Marie Crumb Grandmother

1952 -1973 Joseph, Gilbert, Vera and Amelia Uncles and Aunts

Crumb
1973 - Present  Eugene Frank Bingaman
William Crumb was born in Milton, Pennsylvania. He was 24
years old when he came west from Pennsylvania to homestead 160
acres in 1884. Anna Marie Rockwood came from Albney, Kansas in
1882. They were married in Cinebar in 1889 and had nine children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 140

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Rye, oats, hay, and cattle; 1988 - Hay and
cattle

Additional information: In addition to farming, William Crumb did road
work and was a justice of the peace. When Anna Marie died in 1952,
ownership passed to Anna’s sons Joseph and Gilbert and daughter-in-laws
Vera and Amelia. Vera was the widow of Thomas Crumb; Amelia was
the widow of Isaac Crumb. Today Eugene Bingaman operates the 140-
acre family farm.



The Young Homestead Farm

The Frase Farm Lewis

Owners: Conrad and Katherine Thomas
Location of Farm: 3 miles east of Randle on Silverbrook Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1886 - 1938 Charles Young Great Grandfather
1938 - 1944 Minnie Young Grandmother
1944 - 1981 Henry Young Father

1981 - Present  Conrad and Katherine (Young)

Thomas

Charles Young came west from New Hampshire, living first in
Centralia before choosing a 160-acre homestead near Randle in

1886 when he was 29 years old. Young cleared and fenced the land

and planted it in grass. Raising four children with his wife, Har-

riett, Charles not only farmed but ran a freight team from Chehalis.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 75

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Cows, chickens, pigs, and horses; 1988 -

Dairy cows, pigs, and horses

Additional information: The original home burned, and the second home
which is still in use was built in 1903. The original water system built by
Charles Young and the original orchard are both still used on the farm by
the family. Today, the 78-acre farm is owned and operated by Conrad and

Katherine Thomas and their two children, Angela and Troy.

Owners: Mr. and Mrs. Gene L. Frase
Location of Farm: 6 miles east of Onalaska on Pigeon Springs Rd.

Dates of @ationsh[p to
Ownership  Name B Current Owner
1889 - 1942 Julius and Rosina Frase Grandparents

1942 - Present  Gene L. and Gladys E. Frase

Born in Germany, Julius Frase came to the United States in 1868
at the age of 15. He worked as a section foreman on the railroad in
Mineral County, West Virginia before he and his family came to
Lewis County in 1889. That spring he paid Otto Shotter $500 for
the improvements Shotter had made on land in Lewis County. Mr.
Shotter did not hold legal title to the land so Frase applied for title
to the land under the homestead act. He cleared land and built a
big barn and a house. Frase and his wife Rosina Buser had five
children, with the youngest born in Washington.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained; 147.46

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Cows, chickens, and pigs; 1988 - Hay and
beef cattle

Additional information: The Frases purchased more land in 1902 and 1948.
Today, Gene and Gladys Frase own 173 acres, including 147 acres of the
original homestead.

39



Grays Harbor

The Glenn Farm

Grays Harbor

The Austin Farm

Owners: Donald Gilbert Glenn and Grace Lodeece Glenn
Location of Farm: 372 Monte-Brady Rd., Montesano

Dates of R Relationsﬁz’p to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1868 - 1913 William T. and Lucy Ann Glenn Grandparents
1913 - 1963 Gilbert Glenn Father

1963 - Present  Donald Gilbert Glenn

In 1868, 29-year-old William Glenn came from Ohio to home-
stead 160 acres near the present town of Montesano. Glenn cleared
the land and proved up on the homestead. He and his wife, Lucy
Ann Smith, were the parents of 13 children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 52

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Dairy cattle (milking shorthorn), hay, and
grain; 1988 - Hay or grain for dairy herd

Additional information: Gilbert Glenn and his son, Donald, were born on
the farm. Family remembrances of Grandmother Lucy Glenn include the
hospitality she extended to a group of Indians during an "uprising"”. Her
husband died when their youngest child was two-years-old. Her grown
sons then ran the farm, but she was boss. Today the farm totals 52 acres
and is operated by Donald and Grace Glenn.

Owners: James and Janie Austin
Location of Farm: 2 miles east of Oakville on Elma-Gate Rd.

Dates of Rela;ion.ship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1878 - 1908 Joseph Mauermann, Jr. Great Grandfather
1908 - 1945 Ella Mauermann Austin Grandmother
1945 - 1968 Paul Theodore Austin Father

1968 - Present  James Theodore Austin

While visiting his father in Olympia, Joseph Mauermann, Jr.
learned of a sheriff s sale to satisfy a judgment against William
Hunter. Joseph Jr. made the successful bid and eventually pur-
chased 213.5 acres for $1,200 in 1878. The land included the Black
River Ford, the crossing point for the route connecting Grays Har-
bor to Chehalis and points north. Mauermann built a new house ,
barns and sheds, and cleared the land of trees and brush. He mar-
ried Antonio Worf in 1872 and they had one daughter, Ella. They
were divorced and Mauermann married Helena Walters in 1887.
Mauermann was born in 1848 aboard the "Mosell Boston" as his
parents were immigrating from Austria. They came west in 1852
and eventually settled near present day Dryad.

Acres in original parcel: 213.5 Acres still retained: 133.33

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Wheat, hay, pasture, vegetables, dairy cat-
tle, and hogs; 1988 - Hay, dairy cattle, and young stock

Additional information: As a sideline, Joe Mauermann operated a punch-
eon log barge ferry and a dugout canoe to carry stock and passengers
across the river. His house was a stopover for travelers. Today, James and
Janie Austin operate the 153-acre dairy farm with 100 milk cows.



Grays Harbor

The McDougal Farm

The Koch Farm

Grays Harbor

Owners: Charles W. McDougal
Location of Farm: 3 miles east of Oakville on Sickman Ford Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership  Name Current Owner B
1888 - 1936 Charles E. McDougal Father

1936 - Present  Charles W. McDougal

In 1888 24-year-old Charles E. McDougal purchased 80 acres
Jfrom Robert and Celesta Ames. This was one-half of the Ames’
homestead. McDougal worked at a mill while buying the farm. He
cleared the standing timber and began to farm the land. Born in
New Brunswick, Canada, McDougal lived in Montana prior to
moving onto the farm. He later married and he and his wife had
five children.

Acres in original parcel: 80 Acres still retained: 80

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, oats, wheat, barley, rye, and Milking
Shorthorm cattle; 1988 - Hay and Shorthorn beef cattle

Additional information: None of the original buildings remain, but the
present barn was built in 1923 with lumber from the old barn. Years ago
the valley where the McDougal farm is located was called Poverty Flats.
Today Charles W. McDougal operates 40 acres of the original homestead
and leases the other 40 acres.

Owners: Karl M. Koch
Location of Farm: On Mox Chehalis Rd. between McCleary and Malone

Dates of ReTazionship 1o
Ownership Name - Current Owner
1889 -1918 John George Koch, Sr. Grandfather
1918 - 1961 John George Koch, Jr. Father

1918 - 1963 Martin Gebhardt Koch Uncle

1963 - Present  Karl Martin Koch

J. George Koch, Sr. and his wife, Kreszenzia, were married in
Austria in 1884 and came to the United States in 1889 with their
three young sons. Upon arriving in New York, they immediately set
out for the Washington Territory, arriving in Elma in July 1889.
They stayed with George’s brother Joseph for a short time, and in
August George purchased a 160-acre homestead along the Mox
Chehalis River from George Ryan for $1100 in gold coins. The
Sfamily moved into the one-room woodshed Ryan had built and imme-
diately built a barn and purchased some cows.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 160

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Beef and milk cows; 1988 - Beef cattle

Additional information: Besides keeping a small farm going, George Koch,
Sr. also worked on the Northern Pacific Railroad six days a week. He
came home on Saturday evening and went back on Monday moming.
With the money earned from working on the railroad, he was able to pur-
chase additional land. The Kochs also sold some of their farm produce to
millworkers and their families who lived about four miles up the road.
Today the 460-acre farm is owned and operated by Karl M. Koch.
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The Colvin Ranch S—

The
Thomas Rutledge Homestead s

Owners: Fred A. and Doris Colvin
Location of Farm: 2 miles west of Tenino on Old Highway 99

Dates 07 R Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1854 - 1893 Ignatius Colvin Grandfather
1893 - 1939 Fred Ambrose Colvin Father

1939 - Present  Fred A. Colvin

Ignatius Colvin, a native of Boone County, Missouri, first came
west to Vancouver in 1849 as a driver of a government commissary
wagon. In 1854, at 25 years of age, he took up a 320-acre donation
land claim on Scatter Creek. Colvin built a house and barn and
cleared ground for meadows along the creek. By 1872, he had pur-
chased additional land and increased his holdings to almost 3,000
acres. He married Emma Peck Rector, a widow, in 1866, and they
had four children.

Acres in original parcel: 320 Acres still retained: 240

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay and cattle; 1988 - Hay and cattle

Additional information: Colvin was among a number of Puget Sounders
captured by Indians during the ill-fated Queen Charlotte Island gold ex-
pedition and subsequently rescued by the government. The present home
was built in 1877 and is included on the National Register of Historic
Places. Today, Fred and Doris Colvin own a total of 550 acres including
240 of the early Colvin Ranch.
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Owners: Dale Rutledge
Location of Farm: 1/2 mile south of Littlerock

Dates of; Relationsh_fp 0
Ownership Name Current Owner
1856 - 1925 Thomas Elliott Rutledge Grandfather
1925 - 1977 (Thomas) Albert Rutledge Father

1977 - Present  Dale Rutledge

In 1852 Thomas Rutledge traveled with his parents by ox team
[from Indiana to present day Tumwater. His parents took a donation
claim and, in 1855, 24-year-old Thomas selected land about 9 miles
Sfurther south on the Black River. He cleared land and built a cabin
and barn of logs as there was no road to the nearest sawmill. He set-
tled on the land in May 1856 and, in July, married Louisa Shotwell,
the daughter of a couple who had a neighboring claim. They had
nine children before Louisa died of cancer in 1877. In 1882, Rut-
ledge married Luella Miles. They had two children. Rutledge even-
tually acquired the land under the homestead law.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 139

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay and cattle; 1988 - Hay and cattle

Additional information: In 1879, Rutledge applied for the establishment of
a post office and was appointed postmaster. The post office consisted of a
cabinet in his living room. Living in an isolated area, Rutledge was also a
doctor of sorts. He pulled teeth and in the 1890’s during a small pox scare,
he vaccinated his family. In 1861, Rutledge built a larger house and in-
stalled bored log pipes to supply running water to the house from a spring
on the hill. The house, added on to in 1893, and the 1864 barn are still in
use. Today Dale Rutledge and his son operate the 33 -acre farm.



The Spirlock/Nelson Farm — tuson

Tﬁe M?C ,'T{lT?Tl Pierce

Owners: Robert G. Nelson, Ronald J. and Richard A. Nelson
Location of Farm: South of Tumwater off Highway 99 on Waldrick Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1862 - 1901 James D. Spirlock Great Grandfather
1901 - 1956 Pearl and Gust Nelson Grandparents
1956 - 1975 James Nelson Father

1956 - Present  Robert Nelson Uncle

1975 - Present  Ronald and Richard Nelson

James Spirlock was a livestock trader who came to Washington
Sfrom the California gold fields. He bought cattle from all over the
territory and drove them to Olympia where he loaded them on bar-
ges for shipment to Canada. Spirlock acquired his first land on
Rocky Prairie in 1862 when he paid $211.47 for 140.98 acres of
land that had been selected by Washington Territory as part of its
grant to support a university in the state. He began to clear and
farm the land. Spirlock married a neighbor, Cordella Ricker Plumb,
and they had five daughters. Two daughters married Swedish im-
migrants who worked on the farm, Andrew and Gust Nelson.

Acres in original parcel: 140.98 Acres still retained: 140.98

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, grain, dairy, and beef; 1988 - Hay
and beef

Additional information: Today the Centennial Farm land is part of a 900-
acre farm operated by Ron and Rick Nelson.

Owners: Paul Nix and Lawrence J. Nix
Location of Farm: 11th bend of the Puyallup River; 2505 E. Main, Puyallup

Dates of _ﬁla_tionship to
Ownership Name N ~ Cwrrent Owner -
1852 - 1904 Ronimous Nix Grandfather

1904 - 1962 Ronimous:Nix Father

1962 - Present  Paul and Lawrence Nix

In 1855 22-year-old Ronimous Nix filed a donation land claim on
160 acres he had settled on in 1852, Nix lived in Pennsylvania
before coming to Steilacoom where lie lived before moving onto this
Jarm. He cleared the land and grew hops and various berries: Nix
married three times. He and his first wife, Maude Jane Forest, had

[five children. He and his second wife Catherine L. Mever had no
children. He and Minna Teitzel Mohl had eight children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 127

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hops, cherries, apples, and berries; 1988 -
Corn, pumpkins, strawberries, and Christmas trees v

Additional information: Today three granddaughters and two grandsons of
Ronimous Nix still dwp 127 acres of thé original denafion land claim: Al-
berta Nix Johnson, Helen Nix Kolano Waite, Lucille Nix Housh, Paul Nix
and Lawrence Nix. Paul and Lawrence farm the nearly 22 acres still in
agricultural production, the remainder is leased to the Linden Golf and
Country Club.
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The John Dillard King Farm v

Sunnycrest Farm Pierce

Owners: Dick Allen Taylor
Location of Farm: West of Eatonville on Highway 7 next to Silver Lake

Dates of Relationship_to
Ownership  Name - Current Owner
1884 - 1934 John Dillard and Margaret Grandparents

Catherine King
1934 - 1970 Margaret Elaine King-Taylor Mother
1970 - Present  Dick Allen Taylor

In 1884, 36-year-old John Dillard King, his son Stonewall Jack-
son King, and John's uncle, Samuel Vance, came from
Farmersville, Texas and settled on 210 acres in the Eatonville area.
John acquired 130 acres under the homestead law. The other 80
acres was land granted to the Northern Pacific Railroad which
Stonewall later purchased for $200. The Kings built a small log
house and cleared land. After improving the land, King returned to
Texas in 1888 to bring his wife, Margaret Catherine Case, and
seven children to their new home. The Kings had a total of 12
children. In addition to farming, King worked on road construction,
including the Mountain Highway.

Acres in original parcel: 130 Acres still retained: 55
Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hops, cattle, chickens, and hogs; 1988 -

Hay, cattle, and chickens

Additional information: Information about this farm was provided by Mar-
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garet Elaine King-Taylor who was born on the homestead in 1893. She
still resides there and celebrated her 95th birthday with the community of
Eatonville. Today Dick A. Taylor farms the 55 acres of Centennial Farm
land.

Owners: Joyce Olson Niemann and Charles R. Niemann
Location of Farm: In Key Center bordering State Highway 302

Dates of N Re:lationship to
Ownership  Name - Current Owner
1886 - 1920 Andrew Olson Grandfather
1920 - 1969 Elmer Olson Father

1969 - Present  Charles and Joyce Niemann

In 1886, 34-year-old Andrew Olson chose a homestead of 160
acres. Squatters were on about 15 acres and, rather than fight,
Olson let them stay and filed for 145 acres. He cleared the land,
building two houses and two barns, and sold logs to a brick kiln at
Glencove. Olson was born in Sweden and lived in Tacoma before
moving onto the farm. He and his wife, Ellen Pierson, had five
children.

Acres in original parcel: 146 Acres still retained: 42

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Potatoes and sheep; 1988 - Beef cattle

Additional information: The Niemanns have two of the oxen yoke that
Andrew used when he cleared the land. Elmer Olson drove a horse team
atage 13 to help build State Highway 302. Most of the original land is
still held by family members. Today the Centennial Farm land is part of
97 acres operated by Joyce and Charles Niemann.



%e Q)aﬂiiﬁ'on ?-am Pierce

Owners: Joseph R. and Peggy L. Dervaes
Location of Farm: South of Vaughn on Lackey Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1889 - 1899 Gideon M. and Elmira Davidson Great Grandparents
1899 - 1918 Nathaniel and Ella A. Davidson Grandparents
1918 - 1970 Robert and Bertha Davidson Parents
1970 - 1983 J. Paul and Margaret (Davidson) Brother-in-Law and
Logan Sister
1983 - Present  Joseph and Peggy (Davidson)
Dervaes

Gideon Miter Davidson spent most of his life on the move during
the westward expansion of the United States. Born in New York in
1819, his family moved to Ohio where they lived in 10 counties, his
father being an itinerant master millwright. Gideon also became a
master millwright and continued in this profession as they moved to
Towa. He left lowa in 1883 to establish a mill near Aberdeen,
Dakota Territory. At 70 years of age, he made his final move to
Vaughn in Pierce County and homesteaded 80 acres. Davidson
planted 650 fruit trees and built houses, a barn and outbuildings.
He married Elmira Ferree in 1844 and the couple had six children.

Acres in original parcel: 80 Acres still retained: 5

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Fruit trees; 1988 - Hay, raspberries, fruit,
eggs, and cattle

Additional information: Today, Joe and Peggy Dervaes operate 15 acres
which include the family home and 5 acres of the original homestead.

The Sikes Meadowlake Farm i

Owners: Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Kay Sikes
Location of Farm: 4 miles northwest of Carnation

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name - Current Owner
1882 - 1936 William Ezra Sikes Father

1936 - Present  Kenneth and Edna Sikes

William Ezra Sikes was 23 years old when he homesteaded 160
acres in [882. He was born in Novelty, Missouri, and lived two
years in California before coming to Washington Territory to join
an aunt and uncle who were homesteading in the lower Snoqualmie
Valley. Sikes proved up the homestead, clearing the land and build-
ing a cabin. He soon got into the dairy business. He married Janet
Ada Adair and they had four children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 60

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay and pasture; 1988 - 500 head of dairy
cattle

Additional information: Today Ken and Edna Sikes live in the house Ken’s
father built in 1908. The dairy farm is leased and produces 12,000 to
15,000 pounds of milk per day year round. The milking herd numbers
more than 200. Dry cows, calves, yearlings and heifers plus the milking
herd add up to around 500 head of stock. The Sikes Meadowlake Farm to-
tals 180 acres, including 60 acres of the original homestead.
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Lagesson Homestead ing

The Newman Farm King

Owners: Grant Knadle, David Knadle, Lois Clapper, Alice Kubisky
Location of Farm: 2 miles west of Maple Valley at 20201 S.E. 216th St.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1885 - 1940 Nels Peter Lagesson Grandfather
1940 - 1963 Emil Lagesson Uncle

1940 - 1967 Gunnard Lagesson Uncle

1963 - 1983 Ruth Lagesson Knadle Mother

1967 - Present  Grant and David Knadle, Lois
Clapper and Alice Kubisky

21-year-old Peter Lagesson emigrated from Sweden to Kansas in
1881 joining his sister Emma and her husband John Marker who
had emigrated earlier. Economic conditions were bad in Topeka
and no better in Seattle where they moved in 1883. The Markers
decided to homestead and at least be able to provide themselves
with food. In 1885 Peter applied for adjacent land. To make his first
field he drained a pond. He raised potatoes to sell to local miners.
By 1890 Peter had a half-acre orchard, six acres cleared for cultiva-
tion and 25 acres slashed and seeded to pasture. He married Laur-
entina Nilson and raised six children. A farmer and a carpenter,
Lagesson constructed 17 buildings, and cleared and fenced 50 acres.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 102

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Vegetables and dairy cattle; 1988 - Beef
cattle, fruit, vegetables, and timber

Additional information: The original farm house, built in 1885, and several
remaining outbuildings have been placed in King County Historic Preser-
vation. Today the farm totals 179 acres and is operated by the owners.
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Owners: Mr. and Mrs. Eldon Murray
Location of Farm: Comer of 212th and 384th SE, known as Newmans
Corner

Dates of - R Eelationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1886 - 1915 Charles A. Newman Great Grandfather

1915 - 1980 Frank W. and Marion E. Newman Grandparents
1980 - Present  Eldon Murray

In 1886 28-year-old Charles Newman purchased 40 acres at a
cost of $3 - $3.25 per acre to add to land he already owned across
the road. Newman cleared his new land and put in ditches. Born in
New York, he lived in Ohio prior to coming west. Newman and his
wife, Sara, had two children.

Acres in original parcel: 40 Acres still retained: 40

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Pasture, grass, and dairy cows; 1988 -
Polled Hereford cattle, hay, and pasture

Additional information: The original owner lived on adjoining land and did
not have dwellings or other buildings on this land. The second owner,
Frank Newman, built the present home in 1915. Today the 295-acre farm
is owned and operated by Eldon Murray.



The Peacock Farm King

Owners: Richard R. Peacock
Location of Farm: 26602 S.E. 208th St., Maple Valley

Dates of Relationsh;p to
Ownership  Name Current Owner
1888 - 1904 Charles and Ellen Peacock Great Grandparents
1904 - 1951 Fred Peacock Grandfather

1951 - 1976 Hubert W.Peacock Father

1976 - Present  Richard R. Peacock

In 1887 and 1888, Charles and Ellen Peacock acquired 200 acres
Sfrom the Northern Pacific Railroad Company. The 30 acres owned
by Richard Peacock today were part of a 40-acre parcel purchased
by 36-year-old Ellen Peacock in 1888 for $4 per acre. Charles
logged the land and built a house, barn and other buildings. In ad-
dition to farming, Charles did logging, owned a sawmill, and did
carpentry work. The Peacocks lived in nearby Franklin where
Charles worked in the coal mines before moving onto this land. The
Peacocks had seven children.

Acres in original parcel: 40 Acres still retained: 30

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Fruit trees, timber, and cattle; 1988 - Beef
cattle

Additional information: Both the original house, built in 1889, and barn,
built in 1900, are still in use. The 30-acre farm is currently operated by
Richard R. Peacock.

The Martinson Farm -

Owners: Vernon Roy Martinson
Location of Farm: 3 miles north of Poulsbo on Bond Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1889 - 1930 Mikal Martinson Grandfather
1930 - 1962 Berger Martinson Father

1962 - Present  Vernon Martinson

In the summer of 1889 32-year-old Mikal Martinson chose 40
acres to homestead in Kitsap County. He cleared 10 acres by hand
and donkey and built a log house. Both Martinson and his wife Mar-
tha were born in Norway and had come to Washington from Min-
nesota, living in Tacoma prior to moving onto their homestead. The
couple had six children although only three lived to adulthood. In
addition to running the farm, Martinson worked in Port Gamble and
Port Madison doing logging and millwork.

Acres in original parcel: 40 Acres still retained: 36

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Vegetables, chickens, dairy cattle, and
turkeys; 1988 - Beef and dairy caitle

Additional information: After the first log house burned down in 1889 or
1890, neighbors helped build the log house that is still standing. It is made
of cedar logs with dovetail corners. No nails were used except home
made nails in cable ends. Today the farm totals 36 acres and is operated
by Vernon Martinson.
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The Kirkland/Ragan Farm v

Hungry Hollow Farm Mason

Owners: Donald and Roberta Ragan
Location of Farm: 16 miles northwest of Shelton at the west end of
Skokomish Valley

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1877 - 1886 Moses Kirkland Great Grandfather
1886 - 1933 Jessie Kirkland Great Uncle

1933 - 1940 Josie Ragan Mother

1940 - Present  Donald Ragan

Moses Kirkland was a widower and 72-years-old when he pur-
chased 40 acres in the Skokomish Valley from John McReavy for
$7.30 per acre. A logger and farmer, he first cleared the land. He
gave his 40 acres to his son Jessie who homesteaded 160 acres in
the valley in 1886. Kirkland lived in the White River area near Seat-
tle before moving to the valley. He was born in Louisiana and, with
his wife Nancy, raised four sons and four daughters.

Acres in original parcel: 40 Acres still retained: 40

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, cattle, and timber; 1988 - Christmas
trees

Additional information: Donald Ragan operated a dairy farm on the land
for 44 years. Today 25 acres of the farm is leased to a Christmas tree
grower and, Donald and his son manage the remaining 45 acres.
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Owners: Alfred W. and Doris N. Jones
Location of Farm: 10 miles northeast of Shelton on Pickering Rd.

Dates J Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1889 - 1975 Jacob Edmund and Jessie Julia  Parents

Jones
1975 - Present  Alfred W. and Doris N. Jones

Jacob Edmund Jones was 25 years old when he came to
Washington Territory from Kansas in 1888. He worked in the Kelso
area before coming to Mason County where he purchased 80 acres
in 1889 from Marion and Mary Simmons for $3.50 per acre. Jones
cleared the land, built a house and barn, and planted crops and fruit
trees. Jones’ first wife died in childbirth. He and his second wife,
Bessie Pearson Jackson, had two children. After Bessie passed
away, Jones married Jessie Jackson. They had five children.

Acres in original parcel: 80 Acres still retained: 80

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Garden produce and livestock; 1988 -
Raspberries, Christmas trees, and timber

Additional information: Three families, representing two generations, live
on the 220-acre farm today. Jacob Jones gave the farm its name "Hungry
Hollow Farm" which is still used today. Today Alfred and Doris’ sons,
Edmund and Alfred, Jr. operate the farm.



Jefferson

The Huntingford Farm

Owners: C.R. "Bob" Huntingford, Philip Huntingford, Glen Huntingford
Location of Farm: 4 miles south of Chimacum on Highway 18

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name B Current Owner
1860°s - 1923 John Huntingford Great Grandfather
1923 - 1946 John W. Huntingford Grandfather

1946 - Present  C.R. Huntingford Father

[987 - Present  Philip and Glen Huntingford

John Huntingford arrived in the Chimacum area in the 1860’s. In
1871 he filed a homestead claim on 160 acres he was living on. He
made final proof in 1876 and received patent in 1877. Huntingford
built a house, barn and sheds. Born in England, Huntingford mar-
ried Annie Yoeman in 1874, They had five children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 120

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Garden, dairy, and hay; 1988 - Dairy

Additional information: John Huntingford also was a justice of the peace
and served as a county commissioner. Glen and Phil Huntingford operate
their family land along with another 160 acres which they lease.

The Broderson Homestead

Owners: Wm. A. and Dorothy Broderson
Location of Farm: South of Chimacum at 5944 Center Rd.

Jefferson

Dates of Relationship to
0wnershi£) - Name B C urrent Owner -
1882 - 1929 John Broderson Father
1929 - Present ~ William A. and Dorothy D.

Broderson

Born in Copenhagen, Denmark, John Broderson was a sailor on
a ship-that stopped at ports all over the world. He was the captain
of a ship when he retired from his seafaring career and settled in
Washington Territory. He lived in Port Townsend prior to home-
steading 160 acres near Chimacum. He filed a pre-emption claim
in February 1882, changed it to a homestead claim in 1884 and
made final proof in 1889. Broderson cleared the land and built a
house and barn. John and Carrie Broderson were the parents of
nine children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 40

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Cows, horses, and sheep; 1988 - Livestock

Additional information: In addition to farming, John Broderson also did
stevedoring work. The original house was remodeled in 1921 and 1963.
Today the farm totals 100 acres and is owned and operated by William A.
and Dorothy D. Broderson.
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The Charles Johnson Farm  ieterson

The William King Farm Calam

Owners: Erving Johnson, Thomas Johnson, Constance Childers, Barbara
McClary, Elizabeth Nelson
Location of Farm: 7 miles northeast of Quilcene on Dabob Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1887 - 1946 Charles John Johnson Grandfather
1946 - 1987 Steven Johnson Uncle
1946 - Present  Erving Johnson and Constance  Uncle and Aunt
Childers
1985 - Present  Thomas Johnson Cousin (son of Erving)
1987 - Present  Barbara McClary and Elizabeth
Nelson

A Swedish immigrant, 26-year-old Charles Johnson chose his
homestead of 160 acres near Quilcene in 1887. Johnson builta 12’
x 14" house,a 16’ x 24’ barn, a 14’ x 16’ shed and cleared 3.5 acres
of land in the first two seasons. A bachelor at the time, he married
between 1890 and 1900. He and his first wife had no children, and
after her death he remarried. Johnson raised four children and two
stepchildren. In addition to farming, Johnson worked in a sawmill,
boomed logs, and did work for neighbors.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 74

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay and cattle; 1988 - Cattle, hay, and a
small timber farm

Additional information: The original home, built 1890-1900, is currently
occupied by Johnson’s granddaughter Barbara McClary and her husband,
Henry. Today the 164-acre farm is operated by the current owners.
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Owners: Robert J. Clark and Elliot K. Clark, Jr.
Location of Farm: 7 miles north of Sequim on Clark Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1863 - 1886 William King Great-Great Uncle
1886 - 1919 Elsie King Clark Great Grandmother
1919 - 1923 James A. Clark Great Uncle
1923 - 1981 Elliot King Clark, Sr. Father
1981 - Present  Robert J. Clark and Elliot King

Clark, Jr.

William King, a 47-year-old bachelor, received patent to 150.20
acres under the homestead law in 1870. Born in Edinburgh, Scot-
land, he came to the United States after serving in the English army
and fighting in the Crimean War. He lived at New Dungeness
townsite prior to claiming his homestead in 1863. He built a home,
barn and outbuildings and also cleared several acres. The land
passed to King’s widowed sister Elsie after he died.

Acres in original parcel: 150.20 Acres still retained: 116.47

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, grain, potatoes, and dairy cattle;
1988 - Hay and beef cattle

Additional information: William King was a blacksmith and teacher. He
taught school in a log cabin adjacent to his land claim. He was also the
first Clallam County auditor. The original road from New Dungeness to

Sequim ran through the farm and a small portion of it is still visible on the
south end of the farm where it borders the Olympic Game Farm. Today

Robert J. and Elliot K. Clark, Jr. operate the Centennial Farm land.



The James Clark Farm

Owners: Elliot K. Clark, Jr. and Robert J. Clark

Location of Farm: 3 miles west of Elwha River on Highway 112 in Eden
Valley

Clallam

Dates of— Relationship to
0wnershi;_7 Name Current Owiner -
1887 - 1958 James A. Clark Great Uncle

1958 - 1981 Elliot K. Clark, Sr. Father

1981 - Present  Elliot K., Jr. and Robert J. Clark

James Clark was born in Ireland and came to Washington with
his widowed mother Elsie in 1874 when he was 18 years old. They
joined his mother’s brother, William King, who had already been in
Washington for many years. In 1887 Clark purchased 160 acres
Sfrom Wilbur Covill for $1,000. He built a house, barn and many out-
buildings and cleared 100 acres by hand. A carpenter by trade, he
also trained oxen for use in the logging industry. Clark never mar-
ried and died in 1958 at the age of 101.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 160

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, grain, dairy cattle, oxen, and chick-
ens; 1988 - Hay, beef cattle, and quarter horses

Additional information: Originally the area was known as Poverty Flats but
Clark’s mother, Elsie, renamed it Eden Valley because it reminded her of
the Garden of Eden. Elsie’s husband and three children died of smallpox
in Ireland. She and her surviving children came to Washington via Bos-
ton, Bay City, Michigan, and San Francisco. To reach New Dungeness,
they crossed the Strait of Juan de Fuca from Victoria by Indian canoe.
Today the Centennial Farm land is part of a 360-acre operation.

The Woodcock Farm

Clallam

Owners: Daniel J, and Bernice M. Gagnon, Gwendolyn Gagnon Jones
Location of Farm: 5 miles northwest of Sequim on Woodcock Rd. in Dun-

geness Valley
Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name B Current Owner
1884 - 1886 George Woodcock Great Great Uncle
1886 - 1925 Samuel A. Woodcock Great Grandfather
1925- 1978 Warren Woodcock Grandfather
1978 - Present  Bernice Woodcock-Gagnon Mother

1978 - Present  Gwendolyn Gagnon Jones

George Woodcock, a 32-year-old bachelor, purchased 160 acres
from William and Irma Payne in 1884 at a cost of $5 per acre.
Woodcock was born in New Brunswick, Canada, and lived in
California prior to moving to Washington. Woodcock cleared the
land of heavy timber. He sold 80 acres of the land to his brother
Samuel in 1886 for $600 and the rest of the 160 acres to Samuel in
1887 for $1,000. Samuel later married. He and his wife had five
children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 110

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Cows; 1988 - Oats, barley, alfalfa hay,
wheat, cabbage seed, and spinach seed

Additional information: The old granary has been remodeled into a
residence. Today the farm totals 110 acres of which 75 acres are currently
leased.
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North Puget Sound

ost of northwest Washington’s Centennial Farms were established
in the 1880’s by immigrants from Scandinavia, Germany and the British Isles.
They were miners and loggers, carpenters and surveyors, as well as farmers.
Almost all were the first permanent settlers of the land and acquired that land
from the U.S. government under the homestead law.

The oldest Centennial Farm in the state was established on Whidbey Island in
1851. Settlement progressed slowly along the region’s rivers and the shores of
Puget Sound. In 1880, there were approximately 6,600 people and just under 700
farms in the region.

Western Washington had a number of rich agricultural valleys. The reclaimed
tideland at the mouth of the Skagit River was once called the richest soil in the

world. Indeed, in 1890 oat and wheat yields in Skagit and Snohomish counties
were more than double the state average.

Centennial Farms in this region today are diverse. Northwest Washington is the
center of the state’s dairy industry, and most of the state’s Centennial dairy farms
are located here. The dairy industry makes Whatcom County one of the leading
agricultural counties in the state, based on the value of production, and makes a
major contribution to agriculture in the other four counties as well.

Here also are most of the state’s Centennial Farms that produce vegetables and
seeds. They are part of the region’s well-known vegetable and seed crop
industry. Many other Centennial Farms are beef cattle and hay operations.
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The Freund Farm Jsand

Owners: Winifred L. Freund and Amold R. Freund
Location of Farm: Western section of Oak Harbor along Highway 20

The Iverson Farm fsland

Owners: Edward K. and Edith G. Iverson
Location of Farm: Northeast of Camano Island on Livingston Bay

Dates of Relationship to Dates of i Eeiati_onship to
Ownership Name Current Owner Ownership Name Current Owner
1851 - 1876 Ulrich Freund Great-Great Uncle 1882 - 1904 Hon. Oliver B. and Maria lverson Grandparents
1876 - 1918 Arnold Freund Grandfather 1904 - 1965 Edward and Lena Iverson Parents

1918 - 1974 Ralph U. Freund Husband/Father 1965 - Present  Edward K. and Edith G. Iverson

1974 - Present  Winifred L. and Arnold R. Freund

After serving three years in the Union army, Oliver lverson mar-

In 1851 at the age of 30 Ulrich Freund took out a Donation Land
Claim on 320 acres near present day Oak Harbor. Freund was
born in Switzerland and had served as an officer in the German
army. He sailed to the Puget Sound area with his companions
Taftson and Sumner in 1850 from the California gold rush area.
They were the first white settlers in the Oak Harbor area. A
bachelor, Freund built a cabin and farmed his land. He passed his
land on to his nephew Arnold in 1876.

Acres in original parcel: 320 Acres still retained: 140

ried Maria Danielson and took up farming, first in lowa, then in the
Dakota Territory. After a bad grasshopper year, he decided to
move to Washington and reached Olympia in March 1875. In 1882
the 37-year-old Iverson purchased 54 acres from Thomas Brue for
3200. Construction of dikes to protect the tideland farm was among
the early improvements. lverson’s daughter Bertha and her hus-
band Peter Leque, who also purchased adjoining land at that time,
managed the farm for Iverson. Iverson and his wife were both born
in Norway. They had seven children who lived to adulthood.

Acres in original parcel: 54 Acres still retained: 54

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Oats, hay, and pasture for cattle; 1988 -
Variety of seed crops

Additional information: Oliver Iverson served in the Dakota territorial legis-
Jature in 1869-70 and in 1876-77 represented Snohomish County in
Washington’s territorial legislature. Iverson is credited with being the
chief leader in the movement of Scandinavians to Snohomish County after
helping to survey the Stillaguamish Valley. Today Edward Iverson and
his wife Edith own 179 acres, including all of the original Iverson and
Leque acreage. They rent 65 acres to Mark and Paul Christianson.

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Wheat, potatoes, hay, cattle, and hogs;
1988 - Grain, hay, and silage

Additional information: The home built in the early 1860’s is still oc-
cupied. Today Winifred Freund and her son Arnold still own 140 acres of
the original parcel. 50 acres remain in cropland and are leased to Martin
Boon. A large portion of the land is within the city limits of Oak Harbor.
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Sherman Farms, Inc.

Island

Owners: Sherman Farms
Location of Farm: | mile south of Coupeville on Ebey’s Landing Rd.

Dates of Relationship to

Ownership Name Current Owner

1885 - 1940 F.A. and Mary LeSourd Great Grandparents

1940 - 1949 John, Luther, Charles and Minnie Grandparent, Great
LeSourd Uncles and Aunt

1949 - 1964 Ed LeSourd, Clark and Dorothy Uncle and Parents
Sherman

1964 - Present  Sherman Farms, Inc.

F.A. LeSourd was 42-years-old when he came to Island County
from Indiana in 1885 with his wife, Mary Scoonover, and three
sons. They purchased nearly 200 acres, 130 acres improved and
the rest heavily timbered, from Granville and Henrietta Haller for
$9,000. LeSourd paid $4,500 cash (all the money he had) and the
rest in annual payments with 10 percent interest--he paid off his in-
debtedness in five years. LeSourd had been a teacher in Indiana
and later was a state legislator in Washington.

Acres in original parcel: 199.65 Acres still retained: 160

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Wheat and potatoes; 1988 - Wheat, alfal-
fa, corn, barley, and dairy cattle

Additional information: In an 1893 letter, LeSourd wrote "I find farming
gives better results here than in Indiana". He reported high yields, few
pests and making a specialty of potatoes to supply Seattle and Tacoma.
LeSourd built a new home for his family in 1892 which is still in use. The
barn, built in 1900, also remains. Today the Centennial Farm land is part

of the 668 acres of Sherman Farms, Inc. which is owned by Roger Sher-
man and his son Don, and Alvin Sherman and his son-in-law Wilbur
Bishop and their wives. Roger and Al are the sons of Clark and Dorothy
Sherman. Sherman Farms, Inc. operates a 300-cow dairy.
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(Z_ﬁe KOS[QT' "7(17771 San Juan

(WOOCL’ST:C{@ _'Tafm EState San Juan

Owners: Sylvia M. Rogers and Carla J, Higginson
Location of Farm: South San Juan Island

Dates Ef Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner

1860 - 1919 Christopher and Anna Rosler Great-Great Grandparents

1919 - 1936 Charlie and Laurena Landahl Great Grandparents
1936 - 1968 Frank and Sylvia Landahl Grandparents

1968 - Present ~ Sylvia Landahl Rogers Grandmother

1982 - Present  Carla Higginson

Christopher Rosler was an American soldier and came to the San
Juan Islands while they were jointly occupied by U.S. and British
troops. After possession of the islands was settled in favor of the
United States, Rosler used his pre-emption right and paid $200 for
160 acres in 1876. His declaratory statement indicated he had set-
tled on the land on May 4, 1860. Early improvements included a
house, root cellar, barns, fences and clearing the land. Rosler was
born in Germany in 1840 and married Anna Pike, a Tshimshian In-
dian. They had nine children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 26

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Oats, barley, hay, garden, and sheep; 1988

- Hay and bamboo

Additional information: The home built in 1897 and root cellar still stand.

Today the Centennial Farm land is operated by the present owners.
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Owners: Lucile Willis, Dorothy and Dennis Lundquist, John Willis,
Elizabeth and Herbert Marcum, Judith Slater, Mary Willis and David A. Fox
Location of Farm: 2.5 miles east of Olga on Orcas Island

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1886 - 1920 Richard C. and Jane Willis Great Grandparents

1920 - 1959 Cecil S. and Emma Louise Willis Grandparents
1959 - Present  Cecil Culver and Lucile Willis  Parents
1986 - Present  Dorothy and Dennis Lundquist,

Elizabeth and Herbert Marcum,

Judith W. Slater, John Willis,

David A. and Mary Willis Fox

Richard Willis homesteaded 147 acres on the southeast side of
Orcas Island. He was born in England and lived on Bainbridge Is-
land prior to moving to Orcas Island in 1886 at the age of 54. He
built a house, cleared land, and did ditching and fencing. He
planted an orchard and earned his main livelihood from growing ap-
ples. Willis, a farmer and boatbuilder, and his wife, Jane Bruce, had
five children.

Acres in original parcel: 147 Acres still retained: 85

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Vegetables, horses, and sheep; 1988 -
Sheep, apples, prunes, family gardens, hay, and cows

Additional information: One of the very early volunteer weather stations
was started by R.C. Willis on this place and continues to this day. In 1986,
the Willis” completed a process of deeding land to their children. Today,
the land is owned and jointly managed by Lucile and her children.



Snohomish

The Harvey Farm

Owners: Richard Noble Harvey
Location of Farm: 2 blocks south of Snohomish

Dates of ﬁelationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1860 - 1892 John Harvey Great Grandfather
1892 - 1965 Noble George Harvey Grandfather

1965 - 1986 Eldon Noble Harvey Father

1986 - Present  Richard Noble Harvey

John Harvey was born in England in 1829. At 20, he came by ves-
sel to California just in time for the Gold Rush. He made his way to
Seattle in 1852 and later took a 160-acre claim on Lake
Washington. When his claim was burned out by Indians, he headed
north. In 1860 he bought the rights to land on the Snohomish River
from a disgruntled settler for $50. He built a log cabin, cleared
land and by 1809 had cultivated 50 acres. In 1871 Harvey entered
a homestead claim for the land. He married 33-year-old Christina
Noble in 1872. Their son Noble was born in 1873. By 1876 the
Harveys had a home "with shingle roof, dressed floor, 12 doors, 12
or 14 windows, heated by a stove”.

Acres in original parcel: 169 Acres still retained: 80

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Fruit, potatoes, cattle, chickens, sheep,
and horses; 1988 - Hay, corn, green feed, and cattle

Additional information: John Harvey was appointed commissioner when
Snohomish County was created in 1861. Over the years, the Harveys
have owned or operated Harvey Park, The Harvey Hotel, Harvey Powder
Co. and Harvey Airport. Today Richard Harvey manages the 135-acre
farm.

Snohomish

Getchell Ranch

Owners: Everett D. Alexander, Alex Getchell Alexander, Francis A. Ross
Location of Farm: 1/4 mile east of Everett on Ebey Island

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1874 - 1875 Margaret Getchell Smith Great Great Aunt
1875 - 1897 Martin and Olive Getchell Great Grandparents
1897 - 1940 Everett and Maude Getchell Grandparents

1940 - 1986 Alex and Ruth Getchell AlexanderParents

1986 - Present  Everett D. and Alex G. Alexander
and Francis Alexander Ross

In 1874 Margaret Getchell Smith, born in Maine, paid Charles
Segbert the sum of $1,200 for 154 acres of land. In 1875 her
brother Martin and his wife, Olive, moved from nearby Lowell and
took over the farm. They cleared the land and constructed build-
ings. Martin also worked as a logger.

Acres in original parcel: 154 Acres still retained: 100

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay and cattle; 1988 - Hay, grain, and cat-
tle

Additional information: The original house still stands. Today the 345-acre
farm is operated by Everett Alexander.
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The Iver 9ohnson Farm Snohomish

The Cedergreen Farm Snoomish

Owners: Gailee Kerns, Laura L. and Robert L. Johnson
Location of Farm: Southeast side of Ebey Island along Ebey Slough

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name - Current Owner
1887 - 1908 Iver and Caroline Johnson Great Grandparents
1908 - 1965 Sarah Johnson Larson Great Aunt

1908 - 1970 William O. and Margaret Johnson Grandparents
1965 - 1977 William E. and Iver M. Johnson Father and Uncle
1977 - 1988 William E. and O.K. Johnson Parents
1988 - Present  Gailee Kerns, Laura L. and

Robert L. Johnson

In 1887 41-year-old Iver Johnson paid Charles Pierce $1,000 in
gold coin for 166 4 acres. Born in Norway, Johnson had home-
steaded in Kansas, and lived on Whidby Island and in Mukilteo
before purchasing this land. He cleared the land, built dikes and
ditches, and built a house and barn. In addition to farming,
Johnson fished and did a little beaver trapping. Iver and Caroline
Johnson had four children. Three lived to adulthood.

Acres in original parcel: 166.4 Acres still retained: 160

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Jersey cattle, hay, pasture, garden, or-
chard, chickens, swine; 1988 - Berries, sweet corn, pumpkins, and grain

Additional information: The barn, fish shed and unused home of Sarah and
Lewis H. Larson, built in 1909, are still standing. Today the farm totals
214 acres, including 170 acres of cropland. Bob Johnson and his wife
Laura sell berries and vegetables directly at the farm. They also provide
farm-related entertainment to schools and families.
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Owners: Clarice and Jean Cedergreen
Location of Farm: 3 miles southeast of Snohomish on Old Snohomish-
Monroe Rd.

Dates 0}‘ Relations;zip to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1882 - 1931 I.A.C. Cedergreen Grandfather
1931 - 1959 R.O. Cedergreen Father

1959 - Present  Clarice and Jean Cedergreen

A Swedish immigrant, J.A.C. Cedergreen was 36 years old when
he filed a homestead application on 160 acres in 1882. His first im-
provements were cutting the timber and clearing the land. He made
final proof in 1888 and received patent February 2, 1889. Later, he
traded 40 acres of his original homestead for an adjoining 40-acre
parcel and purchased an additional 15 acres at a cost of $20 per
acre. Cedergreen lived in Snohomish prior to moving onto the
farm. He and his wife, Amelia, had 14 children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 120

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, grain, and dairy; 1988 - Peas

Additional information: An original barn is still in use. The Centennial
Farm land is part of a 175-acre farm managed by Clarice R. Cedergreen.



The
Robert 1.E. Smallman Farm Snohomis

Owners: Gerald and Margaret Schmidt
Location of Farm: 4 miles south of Monroe on Tualco Loop Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1870 - 1900 Robert J.E. Smallman Great Grandfather
1900 - 1938 Elizabeth Smallman Shannahan Grandmother
1938 - 1984 Kathyrn Shannahan Shrum Mother

1984 - Present  Margaret Shrum Schmidt

During the winter of 1855-56, 18-year-old Robert J.E. Smallman
served 100 days as a foot volunteer in Capt. Isaac Ebey’s Company
"[" when there were sporadic attacks by Indians on Puget Sound set-
tlements. He then served in Capt. Smalley’s Company. He helped
build Fort Tilton in the Snoqualmie area and then panned for gold.
In 1872, Smallman filed a pre-emption claim on land he had settled
on in September 1870. He built a house, a barn and a few sheds. He
paid $200 for the 160 acres in 1874 and received his patent in 1875.
Smallman and his wife, Louisa Spencer Morrish Nowell, had four
daughters. One died as an infant and was buried in the Old
Snohomish Cemetery about 1873.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 16

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hops, dairy cattle, and pigs; 1988 -
Produce, corn, berries, apples, wheat, grass, and chickens

Additional information: This Centennial Farm land was passed down
through Robert Smallman’s daughter Elizabeth. Today Elizabeth’s
granddaughter Margaret and her husband Gerald Schmidt own and farm
16 acres of the original parcel.

Frohning Dairy Inc. Snoomish

Owners: Elmer and Frances Betty Frohning, Timothy and Sandra Frohning
Location of Farm: South of Monroe in Tualco Valley on Frohning Rd.

Dates of Relatio;ship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1870 - 1900 Robert J.LE. Smallman Great Grandfather
1900 - 1934 Adelaid Smallman Frohning Grandmother
1934 - Present  Elmer Wilson Frohning Father

1980 - Present  Timothy Henry Frohning

Robert Smallman was one of the earliest settlers of the Tualco
Valley. He first came to the area in the 1850’s as a soldier in the
U.S. army and later pre-empted 160 acres. In 1883, the local
newspaper reported Smallman had 60 acres under cultivation, had
cut 50 tons of hay that season and had pasturage for 330 sheep, 25
cattle and two horses. "The house, though not built after modern
designs, presents a picture of comfort.” Smallman and his wife
Louisa had four daughters. One died as an infant.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 70

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Dairy cattle, hops, and pigs; 1988 - Dairy
cattle, corn, hay, crops, and pasture

Additional information: A barn is all that remains of the original buildings.
Smallman served as Tualco Valley postmaster. This Centennial Farm land
was passed down through Robert Smallman’s daughter Adelaid. Today
Adelaid’s son Elmer Frohning and wife Betty together with their son Tim
and his wife Sandra operate the 180-acre dairy farm.
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The Ohlsen Farm

Snohomish

Ovenell Farms

Snohomish

Owners: Alice M. Ohlsen, Harold N. and Margaret Ohlsen
Location of Farm: East of Monroe on Ben Howard Rd.

Owners: Ted and Mary Ovenell
Location of Farm: West of Stanwood city limits

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1882 - 1926 Theis and Margareta Ohlsen Grandparents
1926 - 1955 John and Peter Ohlsen Unele and Father
1955 - Present  Alice Ohlsen Maother

1978 - Present  Harold N. and Margaret Ohlsen

In 1882, 25-year-old Theis Ohlsen came from Holstein, Germany
and homesteaded [34.05 acres in Snohomish County. He built a
house and barns and cleared the land. Ohlsen married. Ma/ gareta '
Christine Lau, and the couple had eight children. '

Acres in original parcel: 134.05 Acres still retained: 8

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Dairy; 1988 - Grass and fietd com

Additional information: When Peter Ohlsen died in 1955 the farm was split
between John Ohlsen and his wife Mary and Peter's widow Alice. In
1969 an Indian burial site dating to about 1800 was discovered on the
farm. Today, the Centennial Farm land is part of 140 acres farmed by
Harold Ohlsen.
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Dates of Relarzonsth to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1874 - 1907 Thomas and Carrie Ovenell Grandparents
1907 - 1965 George Thomas and Martha Parents

g A0 Ovenell
1965 - Present - Theodore W. and Mary Ovenell

At age 13 Thomas Ovenell allegedly stowed away on a ship from
England to California for the 1849 Gold Rush. He came to
Washington Territory in the 1850°s and to the Stanwood area in
1874 where he purchased 122 acres from James and Louisa Caldon
for $2,500. Thomas and Carolyn Crane Ovenell had two children.
Thomas died in 1884 and son George took over management of the
farm, purchasing it from his mother in 1907 .

Acres in original parcel: 122 Acres still retained: 122

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Oats, hay, and dairy; 1988 - Hay, grass
and corn silage, and dairy

Additional information: Over the years the farm has gone through many
changes in crop production, but dairying has been with the farm all along.
Today four generations of Ovenells work together on their 300-head dairy
farm. Ted Sr. and Mary own the farm, Ted Jr., who started farming with
his father in 1950, operates the 600-acre farm with his son Gary and his
young family.



The Eide Farm

Snohomish

Owners: Kathryn Eide Glick and Herbert Edison Glick
Location of Farm: 1 mile southwest of Stanwood on Leque Island, on Eide

Rd.
Dates of Rela_tionship to
Ownership Name Current Owner -
1878 - 1902 Nels (Nelson) R. Eide Great-Great Uncle
1902 - 1927 Ole E. and Kirsti Eide Grandparents
1927 - 1979 Erik Eide Father

1979 - Present  Herbert E. and Kathryn Eide Glick

Nels (Nelson) R. Eide was born in Granvin, Hardanger, Norway.
He came to the United States and pre-empted 124.40 acres making
final proof and payment on July 16, 1878. Eide and two other Nor-
wegian immigrants hand-diked over 300 acres of farm land. In addi-
tion to farming, he did some mining and occasional logging. Nels
Eide never married, and the land was passed to his nephew, Ole
Eide.

Acres in original parcel: 124.40 Acres still retained: 100
Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Grain crops, hay, and milk cows; 1988 -

Corn and grass for silage and hay

Additional information: Today Kathryn Eide Glick and her husband Her-

bert own 100 acres of the original homestead. The original home is stand-
ing but not in use. Leque Island is below sea level and surrounded by
diking. The present owners maintain and rebuild the dikes as necessary.
The land is currently operated by the Ted Ovenell family who have been
neighbors for four generations.

Qﬁe MQ].OT ?am Snohomish

Owners: Louis and Janet Stangeland
Location of Farm: 2 miles from Stanwood on Highway 530

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1883 - 1937 George W. Major Grandfather
1937 - 1967 Eben Major Father

1967 - Present  Louis and Janet Stangeland

In 1883, 29-year-old George W. Major homesteaded 160 acres
near Stanwood. He moved to the Washington Territory from his
birthplace of Carlisle, lowa. Early improvements included construc-
tion of a small house, clearing the land and draining the swamps.
Major married Eliza Jane Sill in March 1880 in lowa. The couple
had six children. Major also engaged in mining.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 63

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, grain, pasture, and dairy animals;
1988 - Grass for green chop and silage

Additional information: As no roads had been built, George Major had to
go to Stanwood for supplies by canoe. Indians far outnumbered the white
settlers. Eliza Jane Major, a very capable and enterprising woman,
managed the family farm after the death of her husband. Today the farm
is owned by George Major’s granddaughter Janet Stangeland and her hus-
band Louis. It is part of a 500-acre operation that includes land home-
steaded in 1884 by Louis’ grandfather Hans Nordby.
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Snohomish

The Nordby Farm

Snohomish

The Jensen/Grimm Farm

Owners: Louis and Janet Stangeland
Location of Farm: West of Bryant on Stanwood-Bryant Rd. next to Pil-
chuck Creek

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership  Name Current Owner
1884 - 1948 Hans A. Nordby Grandfather
1948 - 1982 Albert Nordby Uncle

1982 - Present  Louis and Janet Stangeland

Hans Nordby was born in Norway in 1862. He lived in the
Dakota Territory prior to coming west, and chose his 160-acre
homestead in 1884. He built a house and barn, cleared land and
put up fences. In addition to farming, Nordby also did logging. He
married Karen Soltheren in 1901 and the couple had eight children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 76

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay and pasture; 1988 - Pasture and tim-
ber

Additional information: Hans Nordby came from the Dakota Territory with
Christian Jorgenson who was one of the first Lutheran ministers to serve
the area. When building his house, Hans carried the kitchen door on his
back from Stanwood. Today the farm is owned by Hans Nordby’s
grandson Louis Stangeland and his wife Janet, and is part of a 500-acre
operation that includes land homesteaded in 1883 by Janet’s grandfather
George Major.
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Owners: George J. Grimm
Location of Farm: 4 miles west of Arlington on Highway 530

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1878 - 1927 Thomas Jensen Grandfather
1927 - 1954 Dora Jensen Grimm Mother

1954 - Present  George J. Grimm

A native of Germany, Thomas Jensen came from San Francisco to
Seattle and then to Stanwood by boat in 1878. Since there were no
roads, the 37-year-old Jensen hired Indians to paddle him up river
in a canoe to his claim. He built a log cabin and began clearing the
land. Each winter for four years he went back to San Francisco to
earn money as a carpenter and cabinet maker. The fifth year he
brought his wife Johanna to the homestead and they raised their two
daughters, Dora and Martha, there. The certificate of patent for
Thomas Jensen’s 159.80 acres was signed in 1886.

Acres in original parcel: 159.80 Acres still retained: 80

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Fruit, vegetables, and forage for a few cat-
tle; 1988 - Pasture, hay, and silage for producing dairy herd

Additional information: A home built by Jensen in 1888 still stands on the
north half of the original homestead where it was moved about 1910 by
his son-in-law William Grimm. The north 79.80 acres were sold in 1923.
Today, the remaining 80 acres are part of a 95-acre dairy farm owned by
George Grimm and operated by his son Robert and wife Marie Grimm.



Snohomish

The Nelson Farm

Owners: Norman H. Nelson
Location of Farm: 5 miles northeast of Marysville on 108th St.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1887 - 1920 Lars C. Nilson Grandfather
1920 - 1959 Adolph Nilson (Nelson) Father

1959 - Present  Norman H. Nelson

32-year-old Lars Nilson came from Sweden in 1887 with his wife
Netta and four children. They moved to their 160-acre homestead
at "Kellogg Marsh", cleared the land and started grazing livestock,
growing food and planting fruit trees. In addition to farming, Nilson
worked on dikes near Marysville and on threshing crews at harvest
time. Two more children were born, Adolph in 1894.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 17

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Cattle, sheep, and, horses; 1988 - Pasture
hay and beef

Additional information: Sons Adolph and Alfred Nilson changed the spell-
ing of their name to Nelson when they started school. Lars Nilson’s
grandson Norman (Bud) Nelson now lives on and operates 27 acres, in-
cluding 17 acres of the original homestead. The original barn still stands.

The Stehr Farm

Owners: Bemice J. Stehr
Location of Farm: Between Arlington and Granite Falls on Burn Rd.

Snohomish

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1888 - 1930 August Stehr Father-in-law
1930 - 1956 Lottie Stehr Mother-in-law
1956 - 1985 Edwin O. Stehr Husband

1985 - Present  Bernice J. Stehr

22-year-old August Stehr settled on a 160-acre homestead in
1888. Born in Germany, Stehr lived in Wisconsin prior to coming
west. Initial improvements included clearing approximately 40
acres. Stehr also did logging and had a lumber mill. Stehr and his
wife Lottie had five children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 90

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Beef cows, hay, and corn; 1988 - Beef
cows and hay

Additional information: The original barn, garage and milk house are still
standing. Today Bernice Stehr and her two sons, Eddie and Greg, operate
the Centennial Farm land.

63



The Hemstrom Farm

Snohomish

The Ulrich Scherrer Farm

Snohomish

Owners: Carl and Elsie Hemstrom

Location of Farm: 4 miles south of Granite Falls

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1886 - 1895 August Hemstrom Grandfather
1895 - 1925 Anna Hemstrom Grandmother
1925 - 1944 Charles Hemstrom Father

1944 - 1962 Jennie Hemstrom Mother

Owners: Ulrich E. and Pearl E. Scherrer

Location of Farm: 4 miles southeast of Granite Falls on Menzel Lake Rd.

Dates of
Ownership
1889 - 1945
1945 - 1962
1962 - Present

Name

Ulrich Scherrer
Anna Scherrer
Ulrich E. Scherrer

Relationship to
Current Owner

Father
Mother

1962 - Present  Carl Hemstrom

In 1886, Swedish-born August Hemstrom and his son Charles
travelled from their home in Meeker (now Puyallup) to 150 acres of
land near Granite Falls that August had located the previous year
to homestead. His wife Anna and her brother Louis Younglowe, with
his 2-year-old son Harry, arrived a few weeks later having travelled
from Tacoma to Snohomish by steamboat and walking the rest of the
way. Hemstrom, about 40 years old at the time, cleared the land and
built a house and barns. Louis homesteaded adjacent land to the
south. In addition to farming, Hemstrom worked as a carpenter and
logger. In the early years of homesteading, he would return to
Meeker to work for Ezra Meeker as a carpenter in the drying sheds
during hop harvest. This provided income for food for the winter.
The Hemstroms had two children, Charles and Augusta.

Acres in original parcel: 149.9 Acres still retained: 149.9

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Dairy cows, potatoes, and hay; 1988 -
Beef cattle and hay

Additional information: Today Carl Hemstrom operates the 149.9 acres.
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21-year-old Ulrich Scherrer came to Washington from California
and chose 160 acres near Granite Falls to homestead in 1889. He
made the land a dairy farm. He also raised hay, potatoes,
vegetables, and, for a few years, sheep and goats. Scherrer was
born in Switzerland. He and his wife Anna had six children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 160

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Unknown; 1988 - Beef cattle, hay, and
rutabagas

Additional information: Six generations of Scherrers have lived or are
living on this farm. The original smokehouse is still standing. Today, Ul-
rich E. Scherrer’s sons, Kenneth and John, operate the Centennial Farm
land.



Mun@ }-afm Skagit

Owners: Robert Leonard Munks
Location of Farm: 5 miles east of Anacortes on W. March Pt. Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1859 - 1897 Wm. and Arminda Munks Grandparents
1897-1913 Wm. and Olive B. Munks Grandparents
1913 - 1936 Leonard P. Munks Father

1936 - 1961 Gerald L. Munks Uncle

1961 - Present  R. Leonard Munks

Born in Ohio, William Munks fought in the Mexican War and
helped survey the Canadian border prior to coming to Washington
Territory. In 1859, Munks took up a claim on property on the Bay
of Fidalgo Island. He started improvements but left for a short time.
Upon returning he found a squatter William Bonner on the proper-
ty. In 1861 he paid Bonner "$60 cash in hand and one silver watch”
for the rights to the land and then resumed development of the farm.
He cleared land, put up rail fences, and built a house, barns, hotel
and trading post. Munks and his first wife Arminda Van Valkenburg
had three children. He and his second wife Olive had two children.

Acres in original parcel: 800 Acres still retained; 7 1/2

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Grain, dairy, fruit, vegetables, hogs, beef,
and chickens; 1988 - Hay and beef cattle

Additional information: Munks was the first permanent settler in what later
became Skagit County. The Munks’ history is on microfilm in the Univer-
sity of Washington Library in Seattle. R. Leonard Munk’s son, Donald,
operates the family land along with 800 acres which they lease.

‘The Summers Farm Skagi

Owners: William M. and Eunice E. Summers
Location of Farm: 5 miles west of Conway on Rawlins Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1872 - 1919 Edward Summers Great Uncle

1919 - 1973 Edward Jr. and Fanny Summers Parents
1973 - Present  William M. and Eunice E.
Summers

In 1872, Edward Summers purchased 156.75 acres on the north
fork of the Skagit River from Charles Henry for $700. Summers
built a crude shelter and rough-diked the land. Because the land
was on a salt marsh, there were no trees to clear. However it took a
tremendous amount of work to clear driftwood and establish a
crude network of dikes to protect the land from the river and bay.
The first dikes were built with horses and slip scrapers, wheelbar-
rows and shovels. Born in England, Summers married, but had no
children, and the farm passed to his nephew, Edward Jr.

Acres in original parcel: 156.75 Acres still retained: 115

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Oats, hay, draft horses, swine, milk cows,
and poultry; 1988 - Vegetable seed, green peas, and grain

Additional information: Originally the river was the main transportation
route moving all supplies and farm products. In 1928, the county built a
road on land donated by adjoining farms. Buildings were moved from the
river side to the road, which became the main supply route. Today the
Summers own and operate 155 acres.
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The Hayton Farm Skagi

The Swanson Farm Skagi

Owners: Irene, Richard, Robert and William Hayton
Location of Farm: 6 miles southwest of Mt. Vernon on Fir Island Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name Current Owner
1876 - 1905 Thomas and Sarah Hayton Great Grandparents
1905 - 1956 James B. and Maude Hayton Grandparents

1956 - 1982 R. Leroy and Irene Hayton Parents

1982 - Present  Irene, Richard, Robert and
William Hayton

In 1876, Thomas and Sarah Hayton purchased 190 acres from
Morris Frost at a cost of $1 per acre. Hayton diked, drained and
cleared the land and added buildings to improve the farm. Hayton
was 43 years old when he came to Washington Territory from his
birthplace in Pike County, Kentucky. The couple had 14 children.

Acres in original parcel: 190 Acres still retained: 190

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay and oats; 1988 - Peas, cauliflower,
broccoli, potatoes and strawberries

Additional information: Hayton was a representative from Skagit County to
the Constitutional Convention in 1889. Today part of the original house is
used as an office and shop. The Centennial farm land is part of 300 acres
owned and farmed by Irene Hayton and her three sons.
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Owners: The Swansons: Robert, John, William, and Lyle
Location of Farm: 3 miles south of Conway on Highway 530

Dates of Relationship to
Owrnership Name Current Owner
1882 - 1922 Bengt Johnson Great Grandfather
1922 - 1944 Frida Johnson Great Grandmother
1944 - 1981 Lena Swanson Grandmother

1981 - Present  William H. Swanson

Swedish-born Bengt Johnson lived in Pennsylvania, Nebraska
and lllinois prior to selecting 132 acres to settle on in Skagit Coun-
ty. He acquired the land under the pre-emption law, proving up and
paying $1.25 per acre in 1882. He was 38 years old at the time.
Johnson dug ditches, built dikes, several barns and a house, and
planted an orchard. He and his wife, Frida Bjorkland Conrad, were
the parents of two children. Johnson was also a butcher.

Acres in original parcel: 132 Acres still retained: 118

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Cattle, hay crops, and grain; 1988 -
Potatoes, barley, cauliflower, cuacumbers, and spinach seed

Additional information: In 1875, Bengt Johnson’s crops on his farm near
Chicago were destroyed by grasshoppers. He prayed that God would
show him land where he could build his home. He homesteaded this farm
in Skagit County because it corresponded to the land he dreamed about
three nights in succession while back east. Today the Centennial Farm
land is leased to Bob Hayton and his family.



The Jennings Farm Skagi

The Chellman Farm Skagit

Owners; Philip Jennings and Robert Hart
Location of Farm: 3 miles northeast of LaConner on Best Rd.

Relaz[ons_hip to

Dates of
Ownership Name Current Owner
1884 - 1932 Isaac and Margaret Jennings Great Grandparents
1918 - 1961 Louis, Martha and Linda Jennings Grandfather, Great Aunts
1944 - 1975 Ranville and Margaret Jennings Parents
Hart
1944 - Present  Philip Jennings Uncle

1975 - Present  Robert Hart

Isaac and Margaret Jennings doubled the size of their farm-when.
they purchased 239 acres from John Conner in 1884. They added.
80 additional acres in 1887 in a purchase from James Porter. Early
improvements to this purchased land included diking and draining
the land and building additional barns. Born in New Jersey in 1834,
Isaac Jennings had pre-empted 80 acres in [871 and filed a home-
stead claim on 160 acres in 1873. This land is no longer part of the
Jennings farm. Isaac and Margaret Jennings had seven children.

Acres in original parcel: 239 Acres still retained: 239

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Oats, hay, and cattle; 1988 - Peas, wheat,
berries, cabbage, turnip seed, and nursery stock

Additional information: The house built by Isaac and Margaret Jennings in
1884 is still in use on a neighboring farm. Today the Centennial Farm
land is operated by Philip Jennings and his nephew Robert Hart.

Owners: Fredric and Phyllis Hawkins
Location of Farm: 3 miles west and 3 miles south of Mt. Vernon on Beaver
Marsh Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name - Current Owner -
1888 - 1920 Fred P. and Anna L. Chellman  Grandparents

1920 - 1930 Anna L. Chellman Grandmother

1930 - 1939 Anna L. Cheliman Estate

1939 - Present  Fredric and Phyllis Hawkins

" 36-year-old Fred Chellman began building dikes, clearing and
" draining the land of his 80-acre homestead in 1888. Born in
Sweden in 1852, he lived at Port Blakely prior to settling in Skagit
County. He and his wife, Anna Louise Benson, had two children.

Acres in original parcel: 80 Acres still retained: 80
Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Durham cattle; 1988 - Vegetable seed,
- green peas, and potatoes
Additional information: At some point Frederick Petterson changed his
name to Fred P. Chellman. Today the Hawkins own 160 acres which are
operated by McMoran Farms.
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The Morrison Farm _—

Island View Farms, Inc. Skagit

Owners: Mrs. Roger Morrison, Don Morrison, Darrin Morrison
Location of Farm: 3 miles south of Mt. Vernon on Morrison Rd.

Dates of Relati_onsh;p to
Ownership Name - Current Owner
1889 - 1954 John Morrison Great Grandfather
1954 - Present  Mrs. Roger Morrison Grandmother
1973 - Present  Don Morrison Father

1986 - Present  Darrin Morrison

In 1889, John Morrison came from Seattle to homestead 160
acres in Skagit County. Born in Varmland, Sweden he was 25 years
old at the time. He cleared the land and tilled the soil. He and his
wife, Agda Olson Morrison, had two children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 125.01

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, grains, and cattle; 1988 - Peas, seed
crops, grain, corn, cucumbers, cauliflower, and broccoli

Additional information: An original granary and one barn remain. The
original home burned in 1914. The family lived in the granary while the
present home was built in 1915. Today Mrs. Roger Morrison lives in the
home. Don Morrison, along with his two sons Darrin and Keith, operate
the 205-acre farm along with another 600 acres which they lease.
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Owners: Phil L. and Vivian Inman, Phil C. and Shelah Inman, Larry R,
Inman, Mary Lou Caudill
Location of Farm: 7 miles northwest of Burlington

Dates of Re/a%ship to
Ownershig Name Current Owner
1885 - 1939 Charles H. Williams Great Grandfather
1939 - 1950 L.L. and Mary Inman Grandparents
1950 - Present  Phil L. and Vivian Inman Parents

1970 - Present  Phil C. Inman, Larry R. Inman,
Mary Lou Caudill

In 1885 Charles H. Williams, age 35, filed a pre-emption claim
on 80 acres northwest of Burlington. Improvements included log-
ging and clearing the land. Williams was born in Connecticut and
served in the Civil War. He came to Washingion Territory from
lowa where he had farmed for a few years. Williams and his wife,
Ellen Crandell, had three children.

Acres in original parcel: 80 Acres still retained: 80

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay; 1988 - Dairy farm

Additional information: The farm has been in continuous operation as a
dairy farm with Jersey cows since 1893. The family farm has been incor-
porated and is called Island View Farms, Inc. Today Phil C. Inman is the
president of the corporation and operates the 155-acre farm along with 54
acres of leased land.



The Benson Farm Skagit

The Holtcamp Farm Skagi

Owners: Benjamin C. Benson, William E. and Joyce A. Benson
Location of Farm: 1 mile south of Allen on Avon Allen Rd.

Dates of Relationship to
Ownership Name - Current Owner
1886 - 1962 Berent A. and Clara T. Benson ~ Grandparents
1958 - Present  Benjamin C. Benson Father

1962 - 1971 Carl A. Benson Uncle

1971 - Present  William E. Benson

At the age of 20, Berent A. Benson joined the flood of emigrants
from Norway to the "land of promise” in the United States. He ar-
rived in Minnesota in 1881 and worked on his uncle’s farm and also
spent two years in the fisheries on Lake Superior. He then travelled
to the Puget Sound area where he engaged in farming, fishing and
logging. In 1886 or 87 he paid $200 1o the U.S. government for a
pre-emption claim on 160 acres of land in the Skagit Valley. In
1901, he married Clara Boe, also from Norway, and the couple had
seven children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 150

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Oats; 1988 - Hay, corn for silage, grass,
peas, and dairy farm

Additional information: Benson owned one of the first steam engines and
threshing machines in the area and harvested his own and neighbors’
crops. The Bensons provided a haven for many family members when
they came to the U.S. Today, four generations of the Benson family live
on the farm. William E. Benson operates the 200-acre farm.

Owners: William H. and Mildred Holtcamp
Location of Farm: 1.5 miles west of Sedro Woolley on Holtcamp Rd.

Dates of B Ii’_elatzfonsi;ip to
Ownership Name ~Current Owner -
1884 - 1931 Henry Holtcamp Grandfather

1931 - 1986 William Henry and Minda B. Parents

Holtcamp
1986 - Present ~ W. H. Holtcamp

In 1870 at the age of 23, Henrick Holtkamp (later Henry
Holtcamp) walked from Hopsten to Bremen, Germany to work for
passage on a ship to America. He arrived in the United States in
1872 and worked his way across the country to California. He
came to the Skagit Valley in December 1878. He applied for his
homestead in 1884 and made final proof in 1890. He married Anna
Schlogle, a widow with one son, in 1889. Holtcamp cleared some
land, planted an orchard and built a house and cattle shed. The
Holtcamps had two more children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 80
Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Fruit, garden vegetables, and dairy cattle;

1988 - Forage for 300-cow dairy

Additional information: In addition to farming, Holtcamp did blacksmith-

ing for loggers and others. Today, 80 acres of the homestead is part of a
460-acre farm owned by Holtcamp Farms, Inc., a family farm corporation,
and managed by Bill and Mildred Holtcamp’s son.
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The McRae Farm

Skagit

The Hall Farm

Skagit

Owners: George McRae, Henry and Donna Stone, Dale and Eunice
Jenkins, Jim and Janet McRae, Fred and Mary Hall
Location of Farm: 1.5 miles northwest of Sedro Woolley on F. and S. Grade

Rd.
Dates of - o Rela;io_nship to
Ownership  Name Current Owner
1885 - 1929 George and Mary McRae Grandparents
1929 - 1988 George A. and Jessie McRae Parents

1988 - Present

George and Jim McRae, Donna
Stone, Eunice Jenkins, Mary Hall

In 1885, 28-year-old George McRae filed a pre-emption claim on
160 acres. He was born in Old Town, Maine, and had worked at a
sawmill in Wisconsin prior to moving west. McRae built a house
and blasted stumps to clear the land. He made final proof in 1887
and received patent in 1889. In addition to farming, he travelled to
the Alaska gold rush three times. McRae married Mary Agnes Mc-
Nally. The couple had four children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 20
Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Hay, potatoes, pasture, timber, bees, pigs,

milk cows, and horses; 1988 - Hay, pasture, and beef cattle

Additional information: George McRae donated one acre of land to the
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local neighborhood for a school. McRae School District #72 was operated
from about 1890 until 1943 when it was consolidated with Sedro Woolley
School District #101. Today, 20 acres of the McRae homestead are
farmed by George and Mary McRae’s grandson Jim who also owns and
operates a nearby farm. Grandson George lives in the two-story five-
bedroom farm house built in 1908 for $300.

Owners: Mrs. Roy C. Hall
Location of Farm: 5 miles north of Sedro Woolley on Highway 9

Dates of Rzaonship to
Ownership Name _ Current Owner
1884 - 1936 Woodbury K. Hall Father-in-law
1936 - 1987 Roy C. and Nina V. Hall

1987 - Present  Nina V. Hall

Born in Maine, Woodbury Hall lived in San Francisco, and then
briefly in Fairhaven (now Bellingham) before homesteading 122.85
acres at the age of 27. Homestead claims on adjoining property
were made at the same time by Hall's brother Fred and their uncle
Amariah Kalloch. Hall cleared 40 acres and put up buildings and
then started farming the land. Hall was a teamster in Bellingham
and also did various types of jobs using horses. He was married
twice--first to Mary Kalloch and later to Ellen Cornelia (Heck)
Broyles. Hall and his second wife Ellen had one child.

Acres in original parcel: 122.85 Acres still retained: 115.12

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Garden and a few sheep; 1988 - Hay and
beef cattle

Additional information: Hall settled on his land before it was surveyed.
The surveyor’s field notes on November 6, 1890 include mention of
Hall’s clearing and house. A barn built in 1890 is presently used for hay
storage. The 115 acres of Centennial Farm land is owned and operated by
Nina V. Hall.



‘The Perry Farm

The Steele Farm

Whatcom Whatcom
Owners: William S. Perry Trust Owners: Bonnie Steele Burns
Location of Farm: 4 miles north of Everson on Van Buren Rd. Location of Farm; 1 mile south of Sumas on corner of Telegraph, Morgan
— — B - and Hovel Rd.
Dates of Relationship to — =
Ownership Name Current Owner Dates of Relationship to
1876- 1893 William B. Perry Great Grandfather Ownership  Name Current Owner
1893 - 1941 William A. and Marie C. Perry ~ Grandparents 1883 - 1899 Marcus J. Steele Great Grandfather
1941 - 1950 Roderic D. Perry Uncle 1899 - 1969 Ralsa N. Steele Grandfather
1950 - 1979 William S. Perry Father 1969 - 1986 Clyde N. Steele Father

1979 - Present  Roderic A. Perry

William B. Perry was born in Kirkcudbright, Scotland and lived
in Peoria, lllinois prior to coming west. He arrived at what was
known as Hogs Prairie in 1876 to homestead 160 acres. He cleared
land and built a log cabin and received title to the land in 1884. He
and his wife, Elizabeth Beck, had nine children.

Acres in original parcel: 160 Acres still retained: 78.5

Crops or livestock raised: 1889 - Fruit trees, grass, hogs, dairy cows, and
chickens; 1988 - Heifers, silage, and dairy farm

Additional information: Today the Centennial Farm land is part of a 135-
acre farm operated by Roderic A. Perry.

1986 - Present  Bonnie Steele Burns

Arriving in Washington Territory from lowa, Marcus Steele, 36,
settled on a 160-acre homestead in June 1883. He cleared land,
planted an orchard and built a log house and barn. He received his
patent in 1890. In addition to farming his own land, Steele worked
in the orchard and fields of Fraser York in the upper Sumas 10
hours a day for 10 cents per day. He and his wife, Harri